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Financial Highlights
MBEHE

Revenue was approximately RMB795.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 1.3% from

last year.

Gross profit was approximately RMB200.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 5.5% from

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB138.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 19.1% from last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.18,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.3% from

last year.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.034 per share for the year ended 31 December
2015, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB28.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the ”Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited ("Suchuang Gas” or
the "Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
refer to as the "Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015
of Suchuang Gas. During the year, the Group achieved the
steady growth of revenue and profit, the gross profit margin
further increased to 25.2%, and the profit attributable to the
owners of the Parent increased by 19.1% from approximately
RMB116.4 million in 2014 to approximately RMB138.6
million in 2015. Moreover, the operating cash inflow as
recorded by the Group during the year was RMB162.7
million and the gearing ratio (total borrowing/total assets)
was approximately 4.4%.

Market Review and Business Review

In 2015, the domestic demand for natural gas, its production
volume and imported volume experienced a slower growth,
due to the complicated domestic and overseas environment,
rising pressures from economic downward, sustained
decline of international oil price and general oversupply in
natural gas market. However, during the year, the Chinese
Government has consistently deepened the structure reform
of green energy, continued to implement favorable policy
for natural gas industry, and adjusted the gateway station
price for natural gas for non-residential usage for two times,
meanwhile promoted the market reform of natural gas price
to stimulate market demand for natural gas, which drove
the healthy development of natural gas market in China to a
certain extent. In 2015, the gas-fired generation represented
a significant increase of 24% vyear-on-year, while "Oil to
Gas” was further expanded into application of transportation
vehicles such as automobiles and ships.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

During the year, China has continuously implemented
the natural gas price structure reform and marketing
progress, and has achieved synchronization of the price
of incremental natural gas and stock natural gas for non-
residential usage. Following the trial operation of Shanghai
Petroleum and Natural Gas Trading Center last July, the
National Development and Reform Committee (the "NDRC”)
has further improved the natural gas pricing mechanism and
has changed the previous maximum gateway station price
management to standard gateway station price management
ever since 20 November 2015, so as to reflect the market
price or supply-demand relationship more reasonably
and flexibly. Along with the acceleration of the natural
gas marketing reform progress, the improvement of the
natural gas price transparency and the optimization of the
energy structure, China’s natural gas consumption growth is
expected to rebound, which will provide long-term support
for the sustainable development of natural gas operators that
take leading position in regional markets.

In 2015, the GDP of Jiangsu Province attained a
breakthrough of RMB?7 trillion for the first time, ranking the
second in China. Its total natural gas consumption ranked
the first in China, and it has also established a complete
natural gas supply guarantee system. As the dominant
piped natural gas supplier and operator in Taicang City,
Jiangsu Province, Suchuang Gas has benefited a lot from
regional economic development and the strengthened air
pollution control in Jiangsu Province, and has tried our best
to realize the goal of ”Gasification Jiangsu”. Therefore, our
business has maintained a robust development, while our
piped natural gas has kept a stable sales volume in 2015.
Furthermore, the Group has finished constructing the city
gateway station which is connected with the Sichuan-East
Transmission Pipeline of Sinopec and has put into operation
in November 2015, which has made sufficient preparations
for the operation and development of the natural gas
business and the future business expansion plan of the
Group.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Prospects

Being a leading energy consumption country, China is
endeavoring to establish the modern clean, safe and
efficient lower-carbon energy system, of which natural gas
development represents an important step for achieving
strategic transformation for energy development. Looking
into the future, the Chinese Government will gradually
increase the proportion of natural gas consumption as one
of the overall targets for energy development during the
13th Five-Year Plan period. By 2020, the liquefied natural
gas over 10% of the total energy consumption by inland
river transport ships in China. In particular, Jiangsu Province
intends to increase the natural gas usage to one-tenth of
the national consumption during the 13th Five-Year Plan
period, and increase the natural gas proportion to 10% in
local primary energy structure. During the year, Taicang
City will also promote the construction of urban energy
facilities, improve the natural gas pipelines, and actively
advance the eco-friendly lifestyle transformation, including
implementing the "Oil to Gas” and ”Oil To Electricity”
Projects and popularizing electric natural gas and hybrid
electric vehicles.

Benefited from the high-efficiency utilization of natural
gas, the continued reform of China’s energy structure, the
market-oriented progressing of natural gas price promoted
actively by the governments at various levels, the Group
believes that China’s natural gas industry will have a long-
term stable development prospect. As for Suchuang Gas,
the Group will continue benefiting from the accelerated
implementation of “One Belt, One Road” and ”Yangtze
River Economic Zone” strategies, the profound integrated
development of the Yangtze River Delta region, and the
fast-growing advancement of the new type urbanization

construction.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Meanwhile, located at the intersection of the Yangtze River
Economic Zone and the Coastal Economic Belt, Taicang Port
enjoys considerable geographic advantages connecting both
rivers and seas. The rapid development of Taicang Port will
contribute to the increasing logistics demands, which will
further promote the Group’s layout of gas refueling stations
in port areas and enable the Group to grasp the business
development opportunities of gas refueling stations. Within
the year, Taicang Port has initiatively adopted the strategies
of "One Belt, One Road” and ”Yangtze River Economic
Zone”, maintained the continued rapid growth in both cargo
throughput and container throughput, and achieved the
annual cargo throughput of over 200 million tons and the
annual container throughput of 3.71 million tons. The fast-
growing bulk shipment and logistics transportation demands
have laid a solid foundation for the development of our
promising natural gas refueling station business. In 2016, the
Group plans to establish 7 gas refueling stations by means
of acquisition and self-construction, located in Sichuan
Province, Taicang City and Suzhou City.

Based on our sustainable regional leading position as well
as the high-efficiency business operation and management
capability, the Group will continue to focus on the fields
of piped natural gas operation and natural gas refueling
stations, explore and expand the customer structure to
natural gas power plant and natural gas distributed energy
operation companies, expand the service targets of natural
gas refueling stations towards vehicles, ships and other
means of transport powered by natural gas, thus increase the
gas consumption level on the basis of the currently stable

natural gas consumption.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Furthermore, the Group will continue paying attention to
the equity acquisition opportunities of natural gas operators
surrounding Taicang City and outside of Jiangsu Province, so
as to expand our business scale and coverage, increase our
earning base and enhance the overall profitability. At the
end of December 2015, the Group has signed an unbinding
framework agreement with an independent vendor,
intending to acquire a company engaged in distribution of
piped natural gas in Jiangsu Province. On 25 March 2016,
the Group has also signed an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire a controlling stake
in a PRC company engaged in the operation of refuelling
stations for sale of compressed natural gas in Sichuan
Province. The Group endeavors to enter the natural gas
market of Sichuan Province by taking full advantages of
its favorable factors, such as promoting the development
of natural gas vehicle vigorously, carrying out low-carbon
urban construction and maintaining higher popularizing
rate of natural gas vehicles. Along with the integration of
our piped natural gas business resources and the favorable
policy support, Suchuang Gas will make unremitted efforts
to enhance the operation efficiency and scale effect, further
accelerate business development, and grasp the tremendous
opportunities of stable expansion of urban piped natural gas
and gas refueling station market.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, I would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers and partners for
their long-term support for the Group and would also like
to extend my gratitude to the Board, the management and
all employees for their hard work and contributions over the
past year. In 2016, let’s work hard together achieve further
sound business development and generate greater returns for

our investors.

Su Aping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERBE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising
three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

=X
BPME=SRFHtRESEN 8=
BRTEF - —RFRTESR=RBULIF
HITES » TRIBABARREFTRAF
HERNBEOER

Name Age Roles and responsibilities

P Fie BAUMEE

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) 67 Overall strategic planning and business direction and
overseeing the overall execution of the Group’s strategy

EREFEAE (EFF) SR uaf2U52§%f177F?LAZQQFE§Z§§§E§ﬁ§E§E@
ERNITH

Ms. Zhu Yaying 69 Implementation and monitoring of the Group'’s strategic
plans and inter-departmental coordination within
our Group

KRR Z+ BT MERAEENRRE RAKEEHBPBHE

Mr. Du Shaozhou 63 Managing the day-to-day operations of the Group

AR SR E EEAKEN A FEE

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Xu Lei 47 Performing roles as a non-executive Director

SR BAISFNTEE OB

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAFYITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 83 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

EEEEE FEITE I IFMITE E BT

Mr. He Junjie 59 Performing roles as an independent non-executive
Director

&4 FETT L IFNTTE B

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 51 Performing roles as an independent non-executive

PEESR A

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015

Director

JEITB IFMITE E TS



Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (8P ), aged 67, was appointed as a Director
on 26 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
and an executive Director on 12 September 2014 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group and overseeing the overall execution
of the Group’s strategy. Mr. Su has approximately 30 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Su has
been the director and general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural Gas”) since its incorporation
in May 2002, responsible for its business development
and operation, strategic planning and investment. Mr. Su
has been the chairman and general manager of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (8 /N T & &I E ¥ & E A
A]) (now known as Suzhou City Suchuang Group Company
Limited (“Suchuang Group”)) since its incorporation in 1992
and is responsible for its overall management and business
development. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Su worked at Taicang
Enterprise Liquified Gas Institute (KB RZERILEFT) under
Taicang Fabric Factory (KEHJE) (later renamed as Taicang
County Liquified Gas Company (K& & &{LR A F]), Taicang
County Gas Company (KEHHERAF]) and Taicang City
Gas Company (KETHERAA]) and held various positions
including manager and legal representative, responsible for
sales and development of business and overall management.

Mr. Su is also the chairman and legal representative of each
of Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Company
Limited (“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) and Suzhou PetroChina
Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas Usage Company Limited.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSRERERE

Ms. Zhu Yaying ((REZ3), aged 69, was appointed as a Director
on 4 July 2013 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. In addition to assisting the
Board and our chairman to formulate the Group’s strategic
plans, Ms. Zhu is also responsible for the implementation
and monitoring of those plans as well as inter-departmental
coordination within the Group. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Ms. Zhu
joined Taicang Natural Gas since its incorporation in May
2002 where she was appointed as a director since December
2004,
of the Company. Ms. Zhu joined Suzhou City Suchuang
Industrial Group Company (& /NMERelEEEE R
known as Suchuang Group) as deputy general manager on

responsible for managing the financial resources
(now
its incorporation in December 1992, responsible for the
financial operations and human resources management.
Prior to joining Suchuang Group, Ms. Zhu was the head of
the labour department of Taicang County Gas Company (X
B BB R A (later renamed as Taicang City Gas Company
(KETE SR AA])) from March 1988 to December 1992,
responsible for supervising and managing human resources.

Ms. Zhu is a director of Kunlun Suchuang Gas.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (#:#8/8), aged 63, is the general manager
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director
on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for managing
the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has over 45
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Du has
been a director of Taicang Natural Gas since 12 February
2015,
From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du served at
PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited
(FARBERRARMNABRAF) as deputy general manager,

deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee,

responsible for the management of its operation.

secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and chairman of
the labour union. From April 1995 to September 2008, Mr.
Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen Petroleum
Industrial Co., Ltd. CRIIABEFEBRAF]) such as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From June 1978 to April 1995,
he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC
(FEIER T %E0) (later known as China National Petroleum
Company and China National Petroleum Corporation) where
he held various positions including secretary and secretary
(deputy division chief level) (BIEEA&ME). From December
1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked at the Locomotive Team
of Daqging Oilfield Construction Headquarter (X B &1 H
1518 S0 B B [X). From October 1969 to December
1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe Oilfield Geophysical
Exploration (B AMEYIRE). Mr. Du obtained a diploma
in Public Administration from Staff University of Continuing
Education of the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (FHARERB TEHKZE) in the PRC in July
1990.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Xu Lei (FF&), aged 47, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 11 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(L REREER(LESBMRAT]) in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (AEEH), aged 83, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (R AR EEMZEE) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (B A8 A T2
7). From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of
the Advisory Committee (25XZ& B€) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (FEIEEE TRZAAA
7). From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (F BIAHRARLLAF]) (now known as
China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.
Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (7524 H
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(R AFBKTETS D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(BEARBA(ERE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BREEFERIHHE) as an accounting

clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was awarded
professor-level senior economist in September 1989 by

China National Petroleum Company.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Mr. He Junjie (fil ¥ #%), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
Mr. He has over 35 years of experience in enterprise
management and 5 years of work experience in the PRC
legal system. From June 2010 to June 2013, Mr. He was the
executive director of Lanzhou City Ganglian Environmental
Development Co., Ltd. (BM &R AERIRIFERBRAR).
He served as a juror in the People’s Court in Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC from March 2005 to April 2010. From
January 1995 to January 1997, Mr. He worked at Shenpu
Co., Ltd. (3 2 A)), an affiliate company of Shenzhen
Material Group Company (RIITTHELE R F]) (“Shenzhen
Material”), as general manager. From January 1993 to
January 1995, Mr. He was the deputy general manager of
Zibo Shengfei Chemical Construction Materials Co., Ltd.
CEBBRICBEMEBR AT,
Shenzhen Material. From December 1972 to July 1986,
Mr. He held various positions at Ningbo City Petroleum
Valves Factory (B2 AMBIFIER) including chief officer,
responsible for quality management.

a joint venture company of

Mr. He obtained a diploma in industrial enterprise
management (LEMZ%EI2) from Zhejiang Radio & Television
University (3T EIEER KAL) in the PRC in July 1986 and
was awarded the qualification of an assistant economist in
December 1988 by Ningbo City Personnel Bureau (3% A
%/3) (now known as Ningbo Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (2R M ANERMT ERE
@)). Mr. He also obtained the Luohu District Outstanding
Volunteer (Z&/#[&{8752% T) award in December 2006.
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Mr. Luk Wai Keung (PE{Z3&), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 19 years of working experience
in the accounting and finance area. Mr. Luk has been the
executive director of Sun International Resources Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8029), since December
2015. Mr. Luk was the chief financial officer of Fu Shou
Yuan International Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1448),
from November 2013 to April 2015. Mr. Luk was the chief
financial officer of Larry Jewelry International Company
Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8351) from
July 2011 to October 2013, responsible for its overall
financial control and management. From August 2007 to
November 2010, Mr. Luk worked at SHV (China) Investment
Company Limited, where he held a number of senior
positions, including vice president, in finance, internal
audit and business development. From May 2006 to June
2007, he served as the chief financial officer of Synergis
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2340), responsible
for its overall finance, accounting and other corporate
functions. From January 1996 to January 2006, he worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in the corporate finance area.

Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The following table sets out certain information about our  TRZ7|EHABEARQF

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXNEREEEEE

SREEE
BRERERAFRA

senior management personnel as at the date of this annual  HfE)ERHE K} -

report:

Name Age Current Position

"5 Fik B ERAL

Mr. Xu Xihua 60 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RBELLE KB RAREBIBERE

Mr. Yuan Qing 41 Deputy general manager of Taicang Natural Gas

RELE RKERAREBRE

Mr. Lian Guangyou 64 Chief engineer of Taicang Natural Gas

BEREE KB RARETIZED

Ms. Huang Hui 47 Chief financial officer of Taicang Natural Gas

wERLL RBERARIM G HRE

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 42 Chief financial officer and company secretary of
the Company

REGERE ARRHGRERARTME

Mr. Zhou Jihui 53 Deputy general manager of the Company

[E MR e ZAYNG b S
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (##5%), aged 60, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (K& & 8| & BRI T T2
BB 7A), where he was a manager from January 1999
to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of
operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (&R & & & &} &) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /I 11 & B B % &
B~ 7]) (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company. Mr.
Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and later
promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau from
December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (F H P RER R K EE) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (BB
T M) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since July 1991.
In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced Productivity
Worker award (50 AE(TE)%E) from the Lanzhou Railway
Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang Outstanding
Communist Party Member award in June 1999.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Mr. Yuan Qing (%), aged 41, joined the Group in August
2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August 2004
as a manager of the production division, responsible for gas
supply service and scheduling, manufacturing operations
and safety management, and was promoted to deputy
general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang Group
from January to July 2004, responsible for internal operation,
regulatory compliance and external relationships. From
1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s Liberation
Army in Beijing Military Region JtRE[&) and retried from
the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of captain. He
graduated from China People’s Liberation Army International
Relations College (B ARMME B R EEZR) in July
1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal Processing
(HEBEREmHEIE) and from Correspondence Institute of
the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC (# #t
PRERHZER) in the PRC specialising in law through
its distance learning programme in December 2001. He was
awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Lian Guangyou (EEZX), aged 64, joined the Group
in May 2002 and is the chief engineer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for its general technology and engineering
work. Mr. Lian joined Taicang Natural Gas in May 2002 as
chief engineer, responsible for designing the construction
of natural gas pipeline networks. Mr. Lian has 25 years of
experience in the management and operations of large oil
and gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lian
was a senior engineer and later promoted to the head of
Zhongyuan Petroleum Company Ethylene Plant ({1 R
AR from January 1992 to March 2002, responsible
for managing construction projects and production. From
October 1984 to December 1991, Mr. Lian was an engineer
and later promoted to the head of Zhongyuan Oil Field
Gas Company Pucheng Gas Processing Plant (F R i
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KRR N FE R S IR BR), responsible for overseeing
the purification and compression of natural gas and
overall management of the plant. From September 1976
to September 1984, Mr. Lian was a technician and later
promoted to an assistant engineer at Chongqging Oil Field
(;REEHH), responsible for implementation of atmospheric
and vacuum distillation technology. Mr. Lian graduated from
University of Petroleum (F£J#AZ) (now known as China
University of Petroleum (F BIf2J8A&%)) in the PRC in August
1976 with a bachelor’s degree in oil refining. In addition,
he was certified as a senior engineer by China National
Petroleum Company (FEIAMRARAER

China National Petroleum Corporation) in December 1995.

al) (now known as

Ms. Huang Hui (Z%), aged 47, joined the Group in November
2010 and is the chief financial officer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for the overall financial management of
our Group. Ms. Huang has extensive experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Huang gained
her financial management experience at Niulan Investment
Co., Ltd. Hubei (#1itL4RE IR E BR A A]) from September
2009 to October 2010, Wuhan Third Generation Technology
Co., Ltd. (BUE=KEHZER 2 7)) from March 2002 to August
2009, Shanghai CIMIC Construction Materials Co., Ltd. (/8
Hr K53 BBR A A]) from November 1998 to February 2002
and Wuhan Jinbolai Commerce and Trade Co., Ltd. (R/Z%
HHEEE AR AF]) from January 1995 to October 1998. Ms.
Huang graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics
(PR KRE) in the PRC in June 1995 with bachelor’s
degree in accounting. She was awarded the qualification of
a certified senior accountant of the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in May 2002.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#), aged 42, is the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of the Company,
responsible for the oversight of the Group’s financial and
accounting operations, as well as company secretarial
and internal control function. Mr. Ng has over 16 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. Since December
2010, Mr. Ng has been a non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of Chaowei Power Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 951),
the financial management and reporting. From December
2010 to October 2013, Mr. Ng served as the chief financial

officer of a private company which is engaged in wholesale

responsible for oversight of

agricultural produce markets in the PRC. From January
2010 to December 2010, he served as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited, responsible for oversight of financial and
accounting operations, company secretarial and internal
control function. From March 2000 to December 2009, Mr.
Ng worked in the Assurance and Advisory Business Services
Department of Ernst & Young and was a senior manager of
Ernst & Young from October 2006 to November 2009.

Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2003 and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June
2006.
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Mr. Zhou Jihui (JB#1E), aged 53, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (FEIT
BT F R BB AR QR where he held various
positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior
engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (4 A B &
mAARFABMRAE]) where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (kTHASR
HBEMETIZ) from Chonging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EFEHETIZZM) (now known as Chongging
University (BB AZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (& B RIRIZ (L B ilT
ZEgEARBRHARMORMEZE®) and the Professional
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (FTHITATREBEMRALDEERBAAREXEZES)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2015, the global economy was still in a slow recovery
due to changing international economic environment, a
slump in commodity prices, the increase in interest rate by
the Federal Reserve and the sustained European debt crisis.
At the same time, the Chinese economy was evolving to a
“New Normal”. Although the economic growth was slowing
down, fundamentals for long-term economic growth did not
change, while foundations and conditions for sustainable
economic growth were kept in a good situation. During the
year, in the context of the “New Normal” of economy, the
growth in the natural gas sector in China has slowed down.
However, with the constant optimization of the economic
growth structure and energy structure in China, natural gas
began to present its benefits of energy saving and emission
reduction, and China will continue to replace fossil energy
such as coal and petroleum with natural gas and electricity,
and has included the gradual increase of the share of natural
gas consumption in its energy development goal for the 13th
Five-Year Plan period. As a result, the natural gas sector has

a prospect of long-term stable development.

During the year, energy price continued to drop, and the
supply and demand was generally loose in China, which
provided favorable conditions for China’s further deepening
of natural gas price reform. The PRC Government has
consistently promoted the reform of natural gas price
system and marketisation process. On 1 April 2015, the
National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC (“NDRC”) officially synchronized the gateway station
price of stock natural gas and incremental natural gas for
non-residential usage, thus the maximum gateway station
price of incremental natural gas for non-residential usage
of all provinces decreased by RMB0.44/m?, while the
maximum gateway station price of stock natural gas for non-
residential usage increased by RMBO0.04/m?. The NDRC
reduced the maximum gateway station price of natural gas
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for non-residential usage of all provinces by RMBO0.7/m3
effective from 20 November 2015, meanwhile improved the
marketisation process of natural gas price for non-residential
usage, and changed the existing maximum gateway station
price management into the standard gateway station price
management. The lowered gateway station price shall
be the standard gateway station price, and the specific
gateway station price may be negotiated by the supplier and
purchaser based on the standard gateway station price within
the scope of no restriction on lower limit and a upper limit
of 20%. This signified a further deregulation of natural gas
price and increased gas price elasticity, providing a greater
room for both the supplier and purchaser to negotiate price,
which may in turn to stimulate the vitality in the natural gas
market.

The gradual promotion of marketisation reform of natural
gas price will help to reduce the production cost of
downstream enterprises for usage of natural gas, and
promote the application and usage of natural gas as a
clean energy, which is in line with the overall development
direction of energy saving and emission reduction. During
the year, the PRC Government continued to advance the
pilot scheme of “Coal to Gas” in transportation vehicles
such as automobiles, ships and vessels as a natural gas
fuel power system, while the supporting facilities and
networks such as gas pipes and gas refuelling stations
were further improved. Meanwhile, in view of features of
higher energy utilization efficiency, green protection and
lower carbon emission, natural gas distributed energy and
gas-fired generation become hot topics for clean energy.
The NDRC, National Energy Administration and Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology jointly issued the
Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Internet+ and Smart
Energy Development in February 2016, aiming to encourage
the development of natural gas distributed energy and
promoting the construction of the integrated energy network
to inter connects with heat-supply pipe network, natural gas
pipe network and transportation network with smart power
grid as the basis, as well as synergized conversion of various
forms of energy, synergized operation of centralized energy
and distributed energy.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is the dominant piped natural gas operator in
Taicang City, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with an
exclusive right under the concession to sell and transmit
piped natural gas to users in the operating area for an initial
term of 30 years ending 31 August 2043. As at 31 December
2015, our natural gas pipeline network totalling 561.8 km
(comprising 477.2 km of completed pipelines and 84.6 km
of pipelines under construction, and covering the major
districts in Taicang City) had already covered over 90%
(in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline network in
Taicang City.

Sale and transmission of natural gas business
Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with a substantial industrial and
commercial user base. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
had 537 commercial and industrial users, and 159,644
residential users. During the year, sale of natural gas to our
users amounted to a total of 213.1 million m?, representing
a slight decrease of 4.5% as compared with last year. In
2015, revenue generated from our sale and transmission of
natural gas business decreased by 2.2% to approximately
RMB674.6 million from approximately RMB689.6 million
in 2014, which accounted for 84.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. Such decrease was mainly due to a slight decrease
in sales volume of natural gas during the year.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines
business

As part of the Group’s business, the Group constructs and
installs urban gas pipeline networks and connects them
to the end-user pipelines for property developers and new
commercial and industrial users. During the year, revenue
generated from natural gas pipeline construction amounted
to RMB117.4 million and accounting for 14.8% of the total
revenue for the year, representing an increase of 26.8%
from RMB92.6 million of the corresponding period of 2014.
Such increase was mainly due to the increase in number of
projects completed during the year.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue was increased by 1.3% from RMB785.6
million in 2014 to RMB795.6 million in 2015. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
construction and connection of gas pipelines during the

year.

Gross profit

Our gross profit was increased by 5.5% from RMB190.0
million in 2074 to RMB200.4 million in 2015. The increase
was primarily due to the increase in gross profit from
construction and connection of gas pipelines businesses. The
increase in the Group’s gross profit margin from 24.2% to
25.2% was primarily due to the slight increase in gross profit
margin of construction and connection of gas pipelines
business as a result of more revenue contributed from new
residential projects with a higher gross profit margin during
the year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by 233.6% from RMB10.0
million in 2014 to RMB33.2 million in 2015, primarily
due to the increase in bank interest income arising from an
average increase in bank deposits in 2015 after listing of the
Company, government grants received and foreign exchange

gain.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by 47.4% from
RMB27.2 million in 2014 to RMB40.1 million in 2015, was
mainly due to the increase in legal and professional fees and

staff costs.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 69.4% from RMB19.0
million in 2014 to RMB5.8 million in 2015. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in average borrowing
balances in 2015.
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Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates decreased by 5.5% from
RMB4.9 million in 2014 to RMB4.7 million in 2015. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the slight decrease
in sales of pipeline natural gas business of our associated
company in 2015.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 24.3% from RMB37.6
million in 2014 to RMB46.7 million in 2015, primarily
attributable to our increased taxable income for the year
2015. Our effective tax rate remained stable at 24.4% and
25.2% in 2014 and 2015 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2015, profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB138.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 19.1% over approximately
RMB116.4 million for 2014.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB279,596,000 (31 December 2014:
net current liabilities of approximately RMB57,592,000)
of which cash and cash equivalents were approximately
RMB445,389,000 (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB125,377,000). Total borrowings were approximately
RMB60,000,000 (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB120,000,000). The amount of bank borrowings as at
31 December 2015 were denominated in RMB and bore
interest at 6.77% per annum and were not repayable within
one year.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 1.96 (31 December 2014:
0.81) and gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) was
approximately 4.4% (31 December 2014: approximately
12.4%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore potential investment and potential business

development opportunities to expand its business in China.

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

As all of the Group’s businesses were situated in the
PRC,
denominated in RMB, therefore, there were no significant

substantially all of its income and expenses were

risk relating to exchange fluctuation. The Group will closely
monitor the interest rate and exchange rate of the market
and make appropriate responses when necessary.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: Nil).

Charge on Assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting
periods are as follows:
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Capital Commitments
The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the year:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group will utilise the net proceeds from the global
offering to finance the capital commitments.

Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of
195 (31 December 2014: 152) staff members in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB25.6 million. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated to their work and to

leverage their capabilities in serving its customers.
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the listing of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) (the
“Listing”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 11 March 2015 (the “Listing Date”).
The key corporate governance principles and practices of

the Company are outlined later in this annual report.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven members, consisting of three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou

Non-executive Director
Mr. Xu Lei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. He Junjie

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to
16 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies
of the Directors and that Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying
have jointly own and operate a number of companies, the
Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship among themselves, and between the chairman
and the chief executive.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has been in compliance with the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for

regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice will generally be given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held.
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Attendance at Board and Board Committee
Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings held from the Listing Date up to
the date of this annual report (the “Relevant Period”) is set
out as follows. During the Relevant Period, the Company

convened an annual general meeting.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 16
February 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
has four members, three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He
Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and one of them is a non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
the Company’s independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Luk Wai Keung possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications required under the Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources

to perform its duties.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The Audit Committee reviewed with the senior
management and auditors of the Company the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
auditing, the internal control system and financial reporting
matters. It also reviewed the financial statements of the
Company, the Company’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 and the Company’s annual report for

year ended 31 December 2015.
The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the

above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 16 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules
and code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee has three members, two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou
Qingzu, and one of them is an executive Director, namely,
Ms. Zhu Yaying. Mr. He Junjie, the Company’s independent
non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has access to independent professional advice,
if required, and is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings. The Remuneration Committee
reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company and the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and made

recommendation to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members
at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
February 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with code provisions A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, one of
them is an executive Director, namely Mr. Su Aping, and two
of them are independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu. Mr. Su Aping has been
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee has access to professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

During the Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and made recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at

the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and

procedures. During the Relevant Period, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made
relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant
legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct
for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in
the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of
the Board and the general manager of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Su Aping and
Mr. Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial
and compliance affairs of the Group. The general manager is
primarily responsible for the strategic decision making and
the management of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are not appointed for a specific term of
more than three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than six months’
written notice. Each of the non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date unless terminated
by three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the relevant letter of
appointment.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has any service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment,
retirement, re-election and removal of Directors are set out
in the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for

Directors.
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NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
next annual general meeting after appointment.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the Model Code during the Relevant
Period. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management
of the Group up to the date of annual report.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
and participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors have received an
induction package covering the regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. During the year, we have
sent and provided a briefing session with respect to the
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory and statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and enhance the Directors’ awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2015, except for two of
the members of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the ranging from HK$1.5 million to HK$3.0 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior

management were below HK$1 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 8 and 9
to the financial statements.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst
& Young for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
below:

EREERESH

HE2015F12A31B8EFE BRREZaR
EEEXENTMNT 15888 LE3.08
BAETHNEEI)  HHRSREREENENH
B BEBTT

FREZRHFMM O ERSFMESNE T
ERETSE ISPy e I ER

ZEEN B £
HZE20155F12A31B ILFE - B3
JER L KSR S EFTAEN € o E s a0
T:

Amount

(RMB)

Items of auditors’ services e e R 1E B (ARE)
Audit services BRI 2,100,000

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015



DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed

assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out
in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board to maintain an adequate internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets
and review the effectiveness of such system on an annual

basis.

During the year, the Board has adopted the following

measures:

(1) the Company has engaged an internal control
consultant to conduct a review of the Group’s internal
control systems and has implemented the relevant
suggestions proposed by our internal control consultant.
As the Company’s business continues to expand, the
Company will refine and enhance our internal control
systems to respond to the evolving requirements of the
expanded operations as appropriate;
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(2) the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) will act as the principal channel of
communication between members of the Group and the
Company in relation to legal, regulatory and financial
reporting compliance matters of the Group as well as
the chief coordinator to oversee the internal control

procedures in general.

Based on the above, the Board is of the view that the
enhanced internal control measures adopted by the Group
are adequate and effective in reducing the risk of future
non-compliance by the Group with legal and regulatory

requirements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the Company Secretary, reports to the
chairman of the Board. The details of his biography is set
out in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Ng also confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December
2015.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be
called by the Board. The written requisition must specify the
business to be transacted on the meeting, which shall be

held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such

shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: 13th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway,
Hong Kong

Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’

enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board

committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall
submit such proposals to the Board in writing for the
Board’s consideration not less than 7 days prior to the
date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary
whose contact details are set out in the paragraph headed
“Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to

have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders
to provide comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders” queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders” communication and transparency.

There has been no change to the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 62
to 67.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.034 (equivalent to HK$0.041) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 31
May 2016. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Friday, 20 May 2016, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Wednesday, 15 June
2016 to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB28.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividend.

Summary financial information

The Shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 11 March 2015, a summary of the published
results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 172.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

EEgRE

EEPHZT2015F12A31B LFEHNRE
RISEIZMEREZE -

ARAMEBRBA/RERR - AEEME
EXBERENPEAMEEANHEEEBRA
R RERRREX - FRRERRLZEMRE
BENIBRAEHE NFAR AEENEE

ST E BREAEALS -
KERRE

AREBHE2015F128318 IFFE W
o URARRBMAEEEZEZHE O BER
M E R EHREKFE62E67H ©

EEEERARERMMN20165F5H318 (2
HiZ) RO AR AR R M RFEIRMS K
HRk EEREBERARK0.0347T (FBER
0.04187T) - ARG WRERAARAAIZER
20165F5 42080 (28 HA) BITHREBAF
ANg E#ER - BEER20165F6A15H
(BHI=) MARARFIRNTEZERARES -
RIRNAKDNRBMEE2015F12A31HILEE
WD RBEAARK28.1EET °

I ERRRRREX R BRREMREMNL
B -

B ERBE

B E E2015F3 11 BREBLTERE
M AEERBENEMBFEENDE RMHE
BENREE  BERIFEREROBE (FHi
BREZVBHmEK) SR FE1728 - tHE
W BB XA BT — 0 -

2015 FFH | HAMRBMNBRAR

45



46

Report of the Directors
EFEEWmE

Property, plant and equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the

financial statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

The Shares have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 11 March 2015, neither the Company, nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of
the Company’s listed securities from the Listing Date to the
date of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
amounted to RMB654,747,000, of which RMB0.034 per
Share has been proposed as a final dividend for the year
(which represented a total distribution of RMB28.1 million).
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 40.0% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer for the year amounted
to 9.5% of the total sales for the year. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 98.3% of the
total purchases for the year and purchase from the largest
supplier for the year amounted to 82.9% of the total
purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers or five largest suppliers of the Group during the
year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying
Mr. Du Shaozhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Xu Lei

Independent Non-executive
Directors:

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (Appointed on 16 February

2015)

Mr. Luk Wai Keung (Appointed on 16 February
2015)

Mr. He Junjie (Appointed on 16 February
2015)
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung will
retire from office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still

considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to
22 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of our executive Directors, Mr. Su Aping, Ms.
Zhu Yaying and Mr. Du Shaozhou, has entered into a
service contract with us for an initial term of three years
commencing from 11 March 2015 and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than six months’

written notice.

Our non-executive Director, Mr. Xu Lei, and each of our
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 11 March 2015 unless terminated
by three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the relevant letter of
appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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Directors’ and controlling shareholders’ interests in
contracts

Save as disclosed under the headings “Connected
Transactions” below and “Related Party Transactions” in
note 32 to the financial statements, no Director, entity
connected with a director, controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.

During the year, no contract of significance for the provision
of service to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries was made.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares, and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571) (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARQNBEBBEHTE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Through issued share
controlled capital
corporation HARA
BRRE BEIRA
Name of Directors EEME Nature of interest EmItE EERE Bot
Mr. Su Aping (1) ML (1) Interest in a controlled S AEREZ
corporation, interest  El{BHER
of spouse 410,460,000 (L) 49.68
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) RPRTT (2) Interest of spouse [T 410,460,000 (L) 49.68
Mr. Du Shaozhou HAR%E Beneficial owner BREBA 100,000 (L) 0.01

(L) denotes long position

Notes:

(1) 410,460,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 70% by
Mr. Su Aping and 30% by Ms. Zhu Yaying. Mr. Su Aping is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Fung Yu Holdings Limited pursuant to the SFO.
Besides, Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying.
Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
interested.

(2) Ms. Zhu Yaying is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the
SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ FERRKHEMA KRG RAEBEKRHD

interests and short positions in shares and

underlying shares

As at 31 December 2015, so far as is known to the
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

AR K

S A
RTB

R2015F12A31H " BARREEHEB
TTBRABFTA  UTIRE (TEEARARE
EREZITHAER) RAR A RMD RAARER
DHEEAS%IIA I DB LERAR T RE
BELHEIEGFE336IEBTHEENEZRE
RftRrER kAR

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital
ordinary HART
shares held BEIRA
Name Gl Nature of interest EmltE s RRAE B
Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings  Beneficial owner EafAA 410,460,000 (L) 49.68
Limited (1) Limited (1)
Action East RaEE Beneficial owner BLHEAA 165,540,000 (L) 20.69
International BRAF (2)
Limited (2)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled RS ABAER 165,540,000 (L) 20.69
Growth Fund 111, Growth Fund Il corporation
L.P.(2) L.P. (2)
Prax Capital China Prax Capital China Interest of a controlled ~ AZ AR M= 165,540,000 (L) 20.69

Growth Fund Il

Growth Fund IlI

GP, Ltd. (2) GP, Ltd. (2)
(L) denotes long position
Notes:

(1) Fung Yu Holdings Limited is held as to 70% by Mr. Su Aping (1)

and 30% by Ms. Zhu Yaying.

(2) Action East International Limited is wholly owned by (2)
Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Action

corporation

East International Limited is interested.

(L) FTREE

Fung Yu Holdings Limited f &k % 4

BARERLEDRIFH70%K30%Has

A#EEXER A FHPrax Capital China
Growth Fund Ill, LP.2E#HA - RIEES
KHAE {51 - Prax Capital China Growth
Fund 1ll, LPEERRHAREREBRAF

7 RS O 1EIE B B OIS R B 35
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Prax Capital China Growth Fund III,L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman Islands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund Il GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no
person, other than the directors and chief executive of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors), other employees of the Group,
consultants and advisers of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 11 March 2015 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
Details of the Scheme are set out in note 28 to the financial

statements.

On 7 October 2015, the Company granted a total of
20,000,000 share options (the “Relevant Share Options”)
to certain Directors and employees of the Group under the
Scheme and on 2 November 2015, the grant of the Relevant
Share Options was cancelled. As at 31 December 2015, no
share option is outstanding.

On 29 January 2016, the Company granted a total of

20,000,000 share options to certain Directors and employees
of the Group.
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Connected transactions
During the year, the Group has entered into the following

continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service operates gasoline and
diesel refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG
and LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of
its business. Its customers during the year included certain
members of the Group.

Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “&k
#l” and "@ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a

nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group, as lessee, has entered into a tenancy
agreement and a confirmation letter to the tenancy
agreement with the Group, as lessor, on 20 October 2013
and 13 September 2014 respectively (together, the “Taicang
Tenancy Agreements”). Pursuant to the Taicang Tenancy
Agreements, Suchuang Group has agreed to lease from
the Group an office premise of 1,082 square meter on 5th
Floor, No. 305 Zhenghe Middle Road, Loudong Street,
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental
of RMB346,500 (exclusive of tax and management fee).
The Taicang Tenancy Agreements is for a period of three
years commencing from 21 October 2013 subject to early
termination by mutual consent between the parties. During
the year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the
Taicang Tenancy Agreements amounted to RMB346,500.

Report of the Directors
EFEEWmE

RER > AEBDAILATHERERS -

FERERSS

FRNERZ B IR AR WAL TUh K5
ANk K% JBR 48 R AR AN B R AR NSk -
TREAER —REBBETATFHER
HREL T - BRRARIBERAR
REREEFPBRAEEETHERR -

#HERE (EREFFHAAN) DHAEE (F
ARSI ETE) R201458 A1 B L2
P E T BULEAI S B R EiR KA KIE
BREEMAEERERFEFEHEARR
AN [&Fa K@ EEnERN 25
REBARE1.007T -

BHAlEB (EREAMEA) BAEE (EAH
FAA) D RIFR20135F10H20H &201449F9 A
BRI —HHEEREE —HHEEHZEER
R (I AEHERZE] - BERKEHE
i - HEAEBERERASBERE —EA
RAPBI&E KB TERGEMA FE3055%
51 HEA,082F F RN AEYEE -
FHE A ARKE346,5007C (T EIEFRIE K
EIRE) KEMHEWZEHB2013F10A21H
BAEH=F  MHENEFRE TARERL
i - REA - HElSERBAEHERZ
EfRHEEAARK346,5007T ©

2015 FFH | HAMRBMNBRAR

53



54

Report of the Directors
EFEEWmE

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the

normal course of business of the Group are provided under

note 32 to the financial statements.
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Upon the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, certain related party transactions set out
in Notes 32(b) to the financial statements (rental income
received from Suchuang Group, purchase of motor vehicle
fuels from Suzhou Suling Automobile Service and leasing of
trademarks from Suchuang Group) are regarded as exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group and were
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements contained under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Connected transaction

The Group entered into an agreement with Taicang Suchuang
Property Development Company Limited to purchase
certain properties located in Taicang as staff quarters for a
total consideration of RMB2,000,000 in March 2015. The
consideration is determined and agreed by the two parties
by reference to the market value.

The transaction constituted a one-off connected transaction
and is exempt from reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 30 March 2016, being the date of this

annual report.
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Directors’ interests in a competing business

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as

defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:

Ms. Zhu Yaying, an executive Director, and Mr. Su Aping'’s
and Ms. Zhu Yaying’s associates are indirectly interested
in Suzhou Suling Automobile Service which is principally
engaged in the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling
stations, as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations (the
CNG and LNG refuelling station business operated by
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is referred to as “CNG/
LNG Business”).

On 23 February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and the Company entered into a deed of first offer (the
“Deed of First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service granted to the Company an irrevocable
right exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance
matters in relation to the CNG/LNG Business, for acquiring
at one or more than one time, within a period of three years
from the Deed of First Offer (extendable at the Company’s
sole discretion), all or part of the CNG/LNG Business at
the Company’s sole and absolute discretion, at the lower of
their set-up cost or fair market value to be determined by
an internationally reputable firm of accountants or valuers,
subject to the applicable governmental approvals, board
approval and shareholders’ approval of the Company (as
may be required under the Listing Rules).

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not
exercised its right under the Deed of First Offer.
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Deed of Non-competition

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed
to the Company of his/her/its compliance with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under
a deed of non-competition dated 23 February 2015. There
has not been any opportunity in any restricted business
(being business which competes or is likely to compete with
the business of the Group from time to time) being referred
by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all
the undertakings under the deed of non-competition have
been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders and
duly enforced since the Listing Date and up to the date of
this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 11 March 2015. Net proceeds
from the global offering were approximately RMB347.5
million, after deducting the underwriting commission and
relevant expenses. As at 31 December 2015, the unused
proceeds were deposited in licensed banks in Hong Kong
and China.
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As at 31 December 2015
2015412 A31H

Percentage
of total Net Utilised Unutilised
Purpose amount proceeds amount amount
E k] P 3 EFA W REN
A& BOW HIRFH ik ik
RMB’million  RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEBEET ARBBET AR¥®EET
Acquiring and constructing MHEEBERAERERA 25% 86.9 7.2 79.7
CNG and LNG refuelling R/ BRIERARE
stations for the sale of REZBERARR
CNG/LNG for vehicular use BALR AR R
Expanding our pipeline hREMNEBBE R 35% 121.6 20.0 101.6
network and sale of piped mMEMAREHHEP
natural gas to customers HEBBAAR
in our existing market
Acquiring controlling interests  YtB& K& Hh & LASN R A 30% 104.2 - 104.2
in natural gas operators REL B R
outside Taicang
Working capital and other EiEEe REM—K 10% 34.8 34.8 -
general corporate purposes tERS
Total st 347.5 62.0 285.5
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Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

st
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To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 62 to 171 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central,
Hong Kong

30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERERAM2ERER

Year ended 31 December 2015

HZE2015F12A31HILFE
2015 2014
20154 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR¥T AR¥ET T
REVENUE WA 5 795,625 785,592
Cost of sales $HERK K (595,220) (595,566)
Gross profit EA 200,405 190,026
Other income and gains H At U A K U 75 5 33,222 9,959
Selling and distribution costs HE R D KA (4,016) (4,788)
Administrative expenses THAX (40,077) (27,183)
Other expenses B (3,055) (1M
Finance costs B AN 6 (5,817) (19,023)
Share of profits of associates pok (=) NG 4,677 4,948
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT A 7 185,339 153,938
Income tax expense PSR 10 (46,700) (37,578)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE®RA 138,639 116,360
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AT &L EIEEERF :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent ISYNEIE ZEPN 138,639 116,360
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M2 - -
138,639 116,360
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DT ERFELEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR ZHENZBE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent BREER A 138,639 116,360
Non-controlling interests JEIE IR R S - =
138,639 116,360
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAREERISE AEWL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SRER
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic =K
— For profit for the year (RMB) - FrEd (ARH) 12 0.18 0.21
Diluted B8
— For profit for the year (RMB) - fﬁl*_l)\ﬁ*u (AE%) 12 0.18 0.21
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

31 December 2015
K2015%F12A31H

2015 2014
20155 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR¥ET T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BRENMERE 13 576,378 564,728
Prepaid land lease payments FEft S 5RIA 14 44,936 50,764
Intangible assets BAE 963 =
Investments in associates RELE A TIHIIRE 15 79,868 78,906
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEE 16 27,937 26,728
Other non-current assets HIEme&EE 17 62,765 2,839
792,847 723,365
CURRENT ASSETS hRBEE
Inventories VEN— 18 7,292 5,814
Amounts due from construction FEWEEEREZE P HIA
contract customers 19 60,648 37,445
Trade and bills receivables EWE Z R R EE 20 42,380 56,475
Prepayments, deposits and FANFIE - BE Rk
other receivables H At e W R IE 17 11,135 14,112
Amounts due from JiE 5 EL At [ 388 75 SR IE
other related parties 21 - 173
Pledged deposits EEAFR 22 5,379 4,513
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBeFEY 22 445,389 125,377
572,223 243,909
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBRE
Trade payables e 8 H RN 23 58,782 42,405
Other payables and accruals HAth e FRIE K BT & A 24 46,634 72,557
Advances from customers BWEF A 153,301 144,095
Amount due to an other JE AT L h A58 7 RRIB
related party 21 - 946
Deferred income EIEWA 25 15,053 13,884
Tax payable FET R 18,857 27,614
292,627 301,501
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 December 2015
K2015%F12A31H

2015 2014
20155 20145
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtEE ARBT T ARBT T
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ RBEE (AF) FHE
(LIABILITIES) 279,596 (57,592)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERRBEE
LIABILITIES 1,072,443 665,773
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Deferred income EIEUA 25 82,293 84,503
Interest-bearing bank loans FTRIRITER 26 60,000 120,000
142,293 204,503
Net assets EEFHE 930,150 461,270
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners FRREE AELER
of the parent
Issued capital BETRA 27 6,544 98
Reserves i 29 923,606 461,172
Total equity R AR 930,150 461,270
Su Aping Zhu Yaying
& ] 7 REHE
Director Director
EE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE2015F12A31H ILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATEAARLE
Share Statutory Non-
Issued Share  option  Merger  Capital  reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve fund  profits Total interests equity
B&fr Rkt BhRE EE FER
k% i B GHEF ErRE  BRE  REE a5t Bt Ag%
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTR ARMTR ARMTT ARMTT ARMTT ARMTR
Note 27 Note28 ~ Note29  Note29  Note29
iE Wibs Wik MR K
At 1 January 2014 R01451518 b2 - - 140,000 5299 33,737 92512 271,610 - 271,610
Issue of shares Brkh 36 - - - 309,675 - - 309711 - 309711
Profit and total comprehensive ~ £EEFIR
income for the year 2ENEET - - - - - - 116360 116360 - 116,360
Capital contribution BRARLE
from the holding company - - - - 93 - - 932 - 93
Acquisition of an equity AERRRE
interest of a subsidiary from YEHBAT
a then shareholder HRaER - - - 21438) - - - (21438) - (21438)
Dividends declared and paid ~~ EERREERE = = = = - (23,000 (23,000) - (23,000
Transfer from retained profits ~~ EBRERZAF - - - - - 1,750 (11,750 - - -
At31 December 2014and — R2014E12A318R
1 January 2015 W155131R 98 - - (74343) 315906 45487 174120 461,270 - 461,270
Issue of shares ¥Rk 6,446 366,262 - - - - - I - I8
Share issue expenses Rk - (25209 - - - - - (5209 - (25209
Transfer of share premium RiyaEE% - 309,675 - - (309,675) - - - - -
Profit and total comprehensive ~ £EEFIR
income for the year SEARER - - - - - - 138,639 138,639 - 138,639
Final 2014 dividends declared ~ EETERIEE2014E
and paid RERE - - - - - - (18170 (18177 - 1817
Equity-settled share HERGEH
option arrangements ElERs - - 909 - - - - 909 - 909
Transfer from retained profits ~ E&E BB - - - - - 14056 (14,036) - - -
AU31 December 2015 0155128318 654 G790 (4B 61C 39543 20528 930,150 - 930150

Retained profits have been adjusted for the proposed

final 2014 dividend in accordance with the current year’s
presentation, which is described in note 2.4 to the financial

statements.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves

of RMB923,606,000 (2014: RMB461,172,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

REBMNERBEAFEMNTFHR A X FEIR2014

FAREK

2.4-°

BEHAE -

BN S IRAR

ZERERE BRBREAMBERARANGS
1 ANR¥923,606,0007T (20144 : AR
461,172,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31BLEFE

2015 2014
2015%F 20144
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ek AR¥T T ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM REFHRERTRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B T A& A 185,339 153,938
Adjustments for: KT A
Depreciation e 7 26,882 32,075
Amortisation of prepaid Faft £ 3030 & FRIAEE
land lease payments 7 1,309 1,445
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEH 7 61 =
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 BRFURE 7 2,730 =
Loss on disposal of items of LEWE - KER
property, plant and equipment HEIE E M EE 7 55 -
Gain on disposal of prepaid HERMN T EE
land lease payments IR Y a 7 (5,657) (4,287)
Amortisation of deferred income R FEU A B SE 25 (14,531) (12,945)
Foreign exchange gain AN e (408) (730)
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 5 (11,802) (1,086)
Finance costs & AR AR 6 5,817 19,023
Equity-settled share option NS A E R AR R
expenses 909 =
Share of profits of associates pak = WGz bl (4,677) (4,948)
186,027 182,485
Decrease in trade and EWE Z R &
bills receivables EHRL 11,365 991
(Increase)/decrease in FEWGER A REF I8
amounts due from construction (), w
contract customers (23,203) 9,972
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,  JBFUE - && M EHAD
deposits and other receivables FEUERIR (#h0), (1,074) 9,013
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 (&Emn), md (1,478) 1,129
Decrease in amounts due from JREE AT Lt B 228 75 K TERK
other related parties 173 1,787
Increase in trade payables FE B 5 BREIE N 16,377 17,492
Decrease in other payables HAh & A RRIE K
and accruals FEETERR L (1,440) (1,523)
Increase in advances from TEUE P FRIEE N
customers 9,206 23,590
Increase in deferred income JEFE YA E N 13,490 25,524
Cash generated from operations REXBERE 209,443 270,460
Interest received B E 9,936 817
Tax paid EfNHIAE (56,666) (39,165)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEBME
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREFH 162,713 232,112
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2015

BE2015F12A31H ILFE
2015 2014
20154 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM REZBHMEBRENE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWMX  BER
plant and equipment ®iBIER (62,966) (50,964)
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEME - BE K&
property, plant and equipment RimIE B P15 23 22,940
Proceeds from disposal of HETE T 78 B 2
prepaid land lease payments PS5/ I8 14,242 11,134
Tax paid for disposal of prepaid ﬁ BN TiAE
land lease payments AR B HIR (4,664) -
Purchase of intangible assets ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ (1,024) -
Prepayments for a proposed BTN FRIA
acquisition (60,000) -
Dividends received from associates T UBf 2= A BIHY AR B 3,715 1,847
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REZEA
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERBFE (110,674) (15,043)
CASH FLOWS FROM METBHAESRSRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares TR PG FRIA 372,728 279,160
Share issue expenses fo BT (19,364) =
Acquisition of an equity interest of a B & RS IR SR UL B Y B 22 7]
subsidiary from a then shareholder o) - (214,343)
(Increase)/decrease in EEREFR (i*jJD)//Ul’J\
pledged deposits (866) 1,950
Interest received from BB EREF A FE
pledged deposits 134 269
Dividends paid BRI E (18,177) (23,000)
Interest paid EARFLE (5,944) (20,386)
New interest-bearing bank loans Mg BIRITER - 190,000
Repayment of interest-bearing BT EBRITER
bank loans (60,000) (569,000)
Decrease in amounts due from JE M5 L At [ 38 T SR IERL
other related parties - 194,126
Decrease in amounts JE A< L A B 38 75 SRIEDR
due to other related parties (946) (276)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/ BMEZBRE (FTA)
(USED IN) FINANCING RERBFE
ACTIVITIES 267,565 (161,500)
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERRESESEMWEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 319,604 55,569
Cash and cash equivalents at FUMRERREEEY
beginning of year 125,377 69,808
Effect of exchange rate changes, net  [ER& &) 7 2% 408 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRORERESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 445,389 125,377
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Corporate and Group Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, the provision of natural gas transmission,
and acting as the main contractor of construction and
installation of gas pipelines in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
holding company of the Company is Fung Yu Holdings
Limited (“Fung Yu Holdings”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate
controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr. Su
Aping (BRFF) and Ms. Zhu Yaying (RZ2ZE) (together
known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31BLEFE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

Corporate and Group Information 1. tEREEER (&)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries

BENMBARNER
ARREEMBRRNFEBHOT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:
Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and business share capital to the Company activities
B BROEE/ FRAEE
£ AR EE L R R TEEH
Direct  Indirect
Hi Gk

China Suchuang Energy Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd.* BE 10,0007 7T REER
(“Suchuang Hong Kong”)

hEEAIER (B8)

BRAR ((#e1EE))

Taicang Natural Gas PRC/ RMB - 100 Distribution and
Company Limited*/** Mainland China 188,000,000 sale of natural gas,
(“Taicang Natural Gas”) R A ARE provision of natural

AEMRAREBRAF 188,000,0007T gas transmission,
([RKERAR]) main contractor of

construction and
installation of gas
pipelines
FARHEERAR -
RERAREZE -
ERRRRZEMRER
WEEABH

Suzhou Zhongyu PRC/ RMB - 100 Construction and
Energy Development Mainland China 10,000,000 operation of natural
Co., Ltd.#/* A3 AEE gas filling stations
(“Suzhou Zhongyu”) 10,000,0007C BEREERARMRBIL

FMPFRRERERAR

(T&RMNEF])
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Notes to Financial Statements
ISR R M5

Year ended 31 December 2015
HZE2015F12A31B ILFEE

1.

2.1

Corporate and Group Information
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows: (Continued)

The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

**  The English names of these subsidiaries represent the best

efforts made by management of the Company to translate
their Chinese names as they do not have official English
names registered in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC").

**% As at 31 December 2015, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong).

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“lASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE
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Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised standards

for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The nature and the impact of each amendment is

described below:

(a)

Amendments to IAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting
for contributions that are independent of the
number of years of employee service, for example,
employee contributions that are calculated
according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the
number of years of service, an entity is permitted
to recognise such contributions as a reduction
of service cost in the period in which the related
service is rendered. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not have
defined benefit plans.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

(b) The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in December 2013 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. Details of the

amendments that are effective for the current year

are as follows:

IFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that
an entity must disclose the judgements
made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, including a
brief description of operating segments that
have been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets
to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker. The amendments

have had no impact on the Group.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS
38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the treatment
of gross carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation or amortisation of revalued
items of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not apply the revaluation model for the
measurement of these assets.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(Continued)

(b)

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity
that provides key management personnel
services) is a related party subject to related
party disclosure requirements. In addition,
an entity that uses a management entity is
required to disclose the expenses incurred for
management services. The amendment has
had no impact on the Group as the Group
does not receive any management services

from other entities.

The Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2011-
2013 Cycle issued in December 2013 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. Details of the

amendments that are effective for the current year

are as follows:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of IFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting
in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself. The amendment is applied
prospectively. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group as the Company is not a
joint arrangement and the Group did not form
any joint arrangement during the year.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)
(Continued)

(c)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13
can be applied not only to financial assets
and financial liabilities, but also to other
contracts within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS
39 as applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the
annual period in which IFRS 13 was initially
applied. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not apply the
portfolio exception in IFRS 13.

IAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies
that IFRS 3, instead of the description
of ancillary services in IAS 40 which
differentiates between investment property
and owner-occupied property, is used to
determine if the transaction is a purchase
of an asset or a business combination. The
amendment is applied prospectively for
acquisitions of investment properties. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not have any acquisition of
investment properties during the year and so

this amendment is not applicable.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments

to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial

information with reference to the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current

financial year. The main impact to the financial

statements is on the presentation and disclosure of

certain information in the financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9

new and

Financial Instruments’
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IFRS 11

IFRS 14
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Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to
IAS 16 and IAS 38

Amendments to
IAS 16 and
IAS 41
Amendments to IAS 27

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle
IFRS 16

Amendments to 1AS 12

Amendments to IAS 7

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint
Operations’

Regulatory Deferral Account®

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'
Amendments to a number

of IFRSs’
Lease*

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?
Statement of Cash Flow?
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected

to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. During 2015, the Group performed
a high-level assessment of the impact of the adoption
of IFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on
currently available information and may be subject
to changes arising from further detailed analyses or
additional reasonable and supportable information
being made available to the Group in the future. The
expected impacts arising from the adoption of IFRS 9

are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at
fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held
as available for sale will be measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income as
the investments are intended to be held for the
foreseeable future and the Group expects to apply
the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded
in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss
when the investments are derecognised.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

(b) Impairment
IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9,
to be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group expects to apply the simplified
approach and record lifetime expected losses
that are estimated based on the present value of
all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all
of its trade and other receivables. The Group will
perform a more detailed analysis which considers
all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements, for estimation
of expected credit losses on its trade and other

receivables upon the adoption of IFRS 9.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. No
mandatory effective date yet determined but is available

for adoption.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in IFRS
3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition
of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. In July 2015, the IASB issued
an amendment to IFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral
of the mandatory effective date of IFRS 15 to 1 January
2018. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January
2018 and is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15

upon adoption.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in IAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be

disaggregated;

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement
of profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the

Group’s financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

2.3 B R E 15 AR A R Y B R B 7 R

HER (&)
B s ERIEVRERT NS EEM
WRYW LW EEMETONE - 7]

S E .
/_\yé’/f_/EJ .

(i) REHENEIRHEREE
K

(i) BERKMBEMNK AN EEER
AIAD R

(i) EBBEETI RIS HMRM ERRF
THAEENE Rk

(iv) BEAEREZZENBERRRA
EEENEMEEBAAANERE
AR - XN BRURKED HE
BRMARTEES RERGNE
=)

BEAN BRI BB EMBARR K R Bm &K
WY RBEINNFEFBERRNER - A%
EFEHR2016F1A1BBRBAZEE
3] o BEMERTHASEMN M B HRERET
fAIERF L -

2015 R | FHARRBRMNOER QA

81



82

Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

2.3

2.4

Issued But Not Yet Effective International

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle
in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating
a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation of

depreciation of its non-current assets.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for

Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the

same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognised such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings BF

Gas pipelines MREE

Plant and machinery TR N i 2%

Furniture, fixtures and Rfh - HER
office equipment MAERE

Motor vehicles B

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)
Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Software copyrights

Purchased software copyrights are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of

ten years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,

but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables. When all financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other

expenses.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are

not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been

transferred to the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank

borrowings and an amount due to an other related

party.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest

rate amortisation process.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in

finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

The balances of construction contracts represent the
net amount of construction costs incurred to date and
recognised profits (less recognised losses), less progress
billings and provision for foreseeable contract losses.

Construction contract costs are valued at actual cost,
and comprise direct materials, direct labour costs,
construction machinery costs, other direct costs and
construction overheads. For an individual contract
whose costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
gross amount due from customers for contract work
in inventories is presented as amounts due from
construction contract customers. For an individual
contract whose progress billings exceed costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits (less recognised losses),
the gross amount due to customers for contract work in
advance from customers is presented as advances from

customers.

The Group estimates total contract costs based on
actual circumstances for each contract. Provision for
foreseeable contract losses will be recognised in profit
or loss where total estimated contract costs exceed total

contract revenue.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when

acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015

24 TEETEHEHE (F)

FRi&% (%)
EREENFERENHHEERERN
MK FRFEEREHREEERE
B UAREMRACEGXEE LE
B R (RBUX) BEZE

i FAEA R LRI SR BT RORER] - AT
MEBRBEENRSHBRERE - M
TR IRER — R E MR — BRI
AR - RIFHEERLERIAE ERT
BIRARE -

B # BY

A & IR IRE R BT B - K AT
NAMmAEM SR - RIBRF/mEIRAF
EFER - MBI E HIRE AR - Bl
B IR A R EEER T AMERI KX
AR AR R AU -

EHWHREEAWE  AEEATE
EAEERAR - BREBAEORS
TEAEHR - S HEFH B AR
A R ERAEEEET 1B 158
AP ER R A B -



2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts”
above;

from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 27 October 2015 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the Black-Scholes model, further details of
which are given in note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and/or service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 20% to 22% of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates of 20% to 22% of the average
basic salaries of the employees under the employment
of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom the defined
contribution retirement plan is applicable. Subsidiaries
in Mainland China have no obligations for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to
the local social security bureau as set out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
each of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
is required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the
accommodation fund.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. In prior years, final dividends proposed by
the directors were classified as a separate allocation
of retained profits within the equity section of the
consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Following the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability

when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
functional currency because the Group’s principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distribution of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of
dividends.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period, are described
below.
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RERAEESHBERABRER - B2
EBEELUATHE - HTEES R
W#&%WET@ RE B TRATEN G
TRV TR

IR B BRI
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision policy for impairment of trade
receivables is based on ongoing evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
those receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of the customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required. The
carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 December 2015 was RMB34,742,000 (31
December 2014: RMB54,489,000). Further
details are contained in note 20 to the financial

statements.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015 was RMB27,937,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB26,728,000), details of which are set out in
note 16 to the financial statements.

Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fees recorded as deferred income

The Group receives fees from customers in advance
in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines to
the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
are received in advance and gradually amortised.
The Group determines the estimated amortisation
period of ten years for its revenue recognition.
This estimate is based on the Group’s historical
experience of the actual service period and the
strength of the Group’s business relationship
with each individual customer. It could differ
significantly based on the customer’s profile,
expected term of the relationship and the strength
of the customer’s business relationship established
with the Group. Generally, amortisation is
calculated on the straight-line basis for ten years.
The carrying amount of deferred income carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2015 was RMB84,405,000
(31 December 2014: RMB88,490,000), details
of which are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.
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Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment

analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

Geographical information is not presented since all
of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
generated in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China. The
non-current asset information is based on the location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No information about major customers is presented as
no revenue from a single customer contributed over
10% to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Directors have only little information about
whether a group of entities are under common control;
and therefore such assessment is made to the directors’
best knowledge. Especially, such assessment is not
made for those entities which might solely be under
the ultimate common control of the government after
taking into account the economic integration among
such entities in the economic environment with a large

number of state-owned entities in Mainland China.

Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods
sold after allowances for returns, trade discounts
and various types of government surcharges, where
applicable; and an appropriate proportion of contract
revenue of construction contracts and service contracts,
net of value-added tax, business tax and government

surcharges.
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Revenue, Other Income and Gains

(Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

gains is as follows:
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WA~ B AR W ()

AREEEOWA ~ A KWz DA 8
FIEATE

2015 2014
2015 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Revenue WA
Sale of natural gas HERAR 668,099 682,113
Construction and connection EREEARREE
of gas pipelines 121,785 96,521
Transmission of natural gas BERAR 8,644 9,673
Others Hit 3,657 3,478
802,185 791,785
Less: Government surcharges B BT N E (6,560) (6,193)
795,625 785,592
Other income and gains H Aty A & Uz
Bank interest income RITHABIHA 11,802 1,086
Foreign exchange gain B 5 W g 6,204 740
Government grants BUT # Bh 9,545 83
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HE TN T AE E I A
lease payments 5,657 4,287
Others Hb 14 3,763
33,222 9,959
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6. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

6. RLERA

BMERADITEINGAT

2015 2014
2015 20145
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Interest on interest-bearing AR AEFABHEEN
bank loans wholly repayable SERITER
within five years PN 5,266 18,948
Others Hh 551 75
5,817 19,023
7. Profit Before Tax 7. BRBIADZF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ ANEE /BB A A &R (G
(crediting): A)
2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 561,979 560,533
Employee benefit expense B8R
(excluding Directors’ remuneration (T BIEN T8 FTE A
as set out in note 8): ExMe) :
Wages and salaries ITERFS 15,648 6,539
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR 23 A5 B O BB AR HE A S 591 -
Pension scheme contributions BRINE T EI R 1,495 544
Social security contributions tERRERREREER
and accommodation benefits 1,855 580
Auditors’ remuneration % BRAT BN 2,100 2,619
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HE T T B 5RIA
lease payments (note 5) Wz (MEE5) (5,657) (4,287)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BE R
property, plant and equipment RimIE R EE 55 -
Foreign exchange gain (note 5) BE 5 Moz (PMRES) (6,204) (730)
Depreciation (note 13) e (fF5E13) 26,882 32,075
Amortisation of prepaid land lease Bt L E IR
payments (note 14) e (MisE14) 1,309 1,445
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EE#H 61 -
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 B8R SORE 2,730 -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, Section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

Notes to Financial Statements
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8. EERFETHAENME

RIFETRA - FBRAUEDIFE383(1)
@)~ (b) » ROEARAR (REES
MEER) ROIE2H - REFANE
EREFBTHRABNMEIOT

as follows:
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Fees ok 390 =
Other emoluments: Az -
Salaries, allowances and e R REMN =
benefits in kind 5,738 485
Equity-settled share option expenses N EE R BRER X 318 =
6,056 485

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above directors” and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

There were no emolument paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss at office
during the year.

REBEARRIOBRETS  ETESERN
FRRFEFRAANEERENRGERE
P i - EL 5 B BN B A SRR MY 28
T BRENATFEREBHANES
REPHER - BRI L BHREE - Mt A
AEEMBHRPOHCREFAELEE
ERFBETEAEMESHEER -

FRAEEHRERE SN EME
B ERTSI INAREE SR IMAREE
REVERESAE RBER S -
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EBERFIEMTHAEBNME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERNZN T EBILIERITESH
directors during the year were as follows: B|ET -
2015 20154

Equity-settled
share option

Fees expenses Total
LR EEN

ik BRERX £

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTR ARBF T

Mr. Zhou Qingzu EER L 130 9 139
Mr. He Junjie & BT 130 9 139
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BE {20 5 A4 130 9 139

390 27 417
2014 20144

Equity-settled

share option

Fees expenses Total
AR A E
e B AR AR 2 HaEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT ARETT

Mr. Zhou Qingzu BBHEEE = = -
Mr. He Junjie A& AT £ - - -
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BEfEoR S A4 = - -
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER  EEMNEBTIEHNTES
independent non-executive directors during the HEMENS (20145 : ]) o

year (2014: Nil).
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 8. EERFIEMTHAENME (&)
Remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive (b) MITEBR —BIHTES
director
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  Discretionary share option scheme
Fees in kind honuses expenses  contributions Total
A1 ] HEREEN £fe
iz REAE MiERd  BRERX At ait

RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'O0D  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMB00O
ARRTE  ARBIT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

2015 W15E
Executive directors: YrES:
- Mr. Su Aping -BhTEE - 2407 - 100 - 2,507
- Ms. Zhu Yaying - RERLL - 1,823 - 91 - 1,914
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - HBRLAE - 1,378 - 91 - 1,469
- 5,608 - 282 - 5,890
Non-executive director: FHES:
- Mr. Xu Lei —HELE - 130 - 9 - 139
- 5,738 - 291 - 6,029
2014 20145
Executive directors: HTES.
- Mr. Su Aping o (CR%: - M - - - M
- Ms. Zhu Yaying - REERL - 9 - - - 9
- Mr. Du Shaozhou - tBARE - 181 - - - 181
- 485 - - - 485
Non-executive director: FonES:
- Mr. Xu Lei —HELL - - _ _ N B
- 485 - - - 485
There was no arrangement under which a Director RER - WEITZEMRZEE - U
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EENEIRERETAME -

during the year.
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors (2014: two directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2014: three) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

hTEERETFMES

FA hE&EaTHES (BEE=%%
£ (2014F - MBES)) MewzFERH
REXHEES - £ - A TME (2014
F:=R) WEARRESTHEEZTHR
AEWGZSFMEEMSMFBLT

follows:

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T

Salaries, allowances e ERMEREYN=
and benefits in kind 3,509 1,661
Equity-settled share option expenses VAR 23 48 B B0 BB AR M A S2 236 -
3,745 1,661

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

FEERRFTHNEEOMES N FIATE
BB ABIAT -

as follows:
2015 2014
20154 201445
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/5 7T - 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C2 1,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 72,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7CE 2,500,000 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T Z 3,000,000 7T 1 -
2 3
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Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

During the year, share options were granted to
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 28. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid

employees' remuneration disclosures.

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join the Group, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office during the year.
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9. HEBREHFMES (&)

FA - REEHAKENRERAMIEE
ENFTETHRAENRSFHEERE
R - B — BB 28 o
ERBBHMEANERSRERNZEFRBR
BATEREHBAHEE - Mt ALRSE
EMBBRRNSBECAALARIFES
MEETBITRAEBNRSFHEREZME
WENA -

FA-AEERENREREHFALX
HERFM - ERWRSIIARKES N
AR ER B BB A R RERIAR(E -
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10. Income Tax

10. A8 8

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for Mainland China current income tax is
based on the statutory rate of 25% (2014: 25%) of the
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
as determined in accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law which was approved and became
effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New Corporate

Income Tax Law”).

The major components of income tax expense are as

follows:

AEBARAEEKE QR EM ARG
X EREERMELNIRE ZE A
ERER MR N IR BB RGNS o

REFSHENRUNEE - NARH
AN % B E RGNS -

BN FEAREBES B 58 E L AL
FERB A - PRk I L EF B RS IRAE
R

s B A th B HA P 45 R 8 4 T AR BB R
EMBRE ([FEEMERZE] - B
2008F1RA1BHERER F BAK
o Bt 8 A B B FE ER B Ui A BA25%
(20145 : 25%) BEEMEFH ©

FEREXNEIEBHRIMT -

2015 2014
2015 20145
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Current tax: BNEAR IR

Income tax in the PRC for the year FAFRBAER 47,331 40,659

Adjustment in respect of current tax EREHEARN
of previous periods B EAR 18 8 B 578 -
Deferred tax (note 16) BIER A (FifE16) (1,209) (3,081)
Total tax charge for the year FABIALX K 46,700 37,578
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10. Income Tax (Continued) 10. FR{8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit BRARIEARN T RE KB HE AR
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in e fE R VERE R A TE M R T E R BR T AT
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries A B IR B X BRIR BRR A Rt E R
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax HAY AEERNT

rate is as follows:

2015 2014
2015 20145
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Profit before tax R 5 A o 185,339 153,938
Notional tax on profit before REAEBERE
tax, calculated at the BR % Al & A B 2 IR
statutory tax rate 46,335 38,485
Income not subject to tax BRRTZ WA (755) =
Expenses not deductible for tax RN R 2 446 31
Tax losses not recognised RNEERTIAE R 1,236 270
Adjustments in respect of iR A AR A A
current tax of previous periods BIVEAR 18 38 & 578 =
Profits attributable to associates Bt 2 A A A (1,140) (1,208)
Total tax charge recognised ERRMIER S 46,700 37,578
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting Bt N TR EMLTIIE A ARES1,787, 000
to RMB1,787,000 (2014: RMB1,909,000) is included gt (20144 © A KK #1,909,0007T) °
n “Share of profits of associates” in the consolidated ERGEERkEMAEZEKRERF E’U
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive [ D {hEtE N BHEF ] °
income.
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11. Dividends

On 30 March 2016, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMB0.034
per ordinary share (2014: RMB0.022), subject to the
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company.

11. RE
M2016F3A30H R AREEZS &
REFHIRZEEE2015F12A318 IEF
ERHAREFREBRARKO.0347T
(20145 : AR¥0.02270) @ HEAGFK
RRARAEERRBEFAS LHER
AEE -

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARET T

Proposed final - RMB0.034 BEANERE —

(2014: RMB0.022) per ordinary share ~ SR E @A A R#0.0347T
(20144 : AR®0.0227T) 28,092 17,600

The dividend declared by the Company’s subsidiary to
its then shareholders during the year was as follows:

FA - ARAMBRAMEERHBR
FIRERBMT

2015 2014

2015 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

Special dividend 5 7l BB, - 23,000

Special dividend of RMB23,000,000 proposed by the
board of directors of Taicang Natural Gas to its then
shareholders was approved on 26 May 2014.
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12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary

Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 780,691,890
(2014: 549,218,471) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted to
reflect the interest on the share option scheme, where
applicable (see below). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary

shares into ordinary shares.
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12. BRARIEEREFEAELMER

Z

BRERBFTIREBEE QAL RRER
BABGEERNRFNRFADZETEBER
D0 AE 15 $4780,691,8908% (20144 -
549,218,4710%) 1% -

BREERNNESEOERE AR E
BIRERA ARIEFREN (KA
REREERERTBINAE - HEM (AT
X)) FHE o GHERATAS T B INE T
BEASARFEERERARNNFAE
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

12. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary 12. B AREZEREZTEARLER

Equity Holders of the Parent (Continued) BF (&)
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per FRERNEFER JHZ A TN EEST
share are based on: ®:
2015 2014
2015 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Earnings B2
Profit attributable to ordinary equity REESRERB T
holders of the parent, used in the BRRIEBRERAA
basic earnings per share calculation FEAG & A 138,639 116,360
Number of shares
R EE
2015 2014
2015 20145
Shares R 4
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ R{EET EEREARRZFH
shares in issue during the year used FREBITEER
in the basic earnings per share T
calculation 780,691,890 549,218,471
Effect of dilution-weighted average e e — TmiRnE
number of ordinary shares: g
Share options RE a2 3,561,644 -

784,253,534 549,218,471
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12831B IEEE

13. 9% - BRER®RE

Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
Buildings  pipelines  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
il £ER
BF MREE BEREE BAERME RE HEIR @
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETn ARBTR AREFT ARETR
Cost: KA
At January 2014 M2014F1A1R 200276 391,182 37,462 779 5,101 17,705 652,505
Additions RE 1,728 - - 162 2,956 48,135 52,981
Transfers R 2,767 14,240 - 2,092 - (19,099) -
Disposals He (27,402) = = = = - (27,402)
At 31 December 2014 }A2014F12 8318 &
and 1 January 2015 015%1A18 177,369 405,422 37,462 3,033 8,057 46,741 678,084
Additions RE 2,325 = 191 546 237 35,311 38,610
Transfers EE - 2,936 2,695 - - (5,631) -
Disposals HeE = = (30) (453) (602) - (1,085)
At 31 December 2015 20154128318 179,694 408,358 40,318 3,126 7,692 76,421 715,609
Accumulated SHIE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2014 #2014F1A1R 14,192 60,176 8,950 509 1,916 - 85,743
Charge for the year ERRX 6,192 21,783 3,182 353 565 = 32,075
Disposals qie (4,462) = - - - - (4,462)
At 31 December 2014 #A2014F12 8318 &
and 1January 2015 9015€1 818 15,922 81,959 12,132 862 2,481 - 113,356
Charge for the year FRHAY 5,576 16,846 3,201 523 736 - 26,882
Disposals e = = (28) (431) (548) - (1,007)
At 31 December 2015 20154128318 21,498 98,805 15,305 954 2,669 - 139231
Net carrying amount:  BREF(E :
At31 December 2014 120145124318 161,447 323,463 25,330 2,171 5,576 46,741 564,728
At 31 December 2015 #2015512 8318 158,196 309,553 25,013 2,172 5,023 76421 576378
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Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

13. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
At 31
buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB127,177,000 (2014: RMB130,319,000) were

December 2015, certain of the Group’s

13.

M- BERXE (&)

R2015F12 8318 » AEBR@EFE
45 NER127,177,0007T (20144 -
AR ¥130,319,0007T) W& TEF &

pledged to secure interest-bearing bank loans granted

to the Group (note 26).

REHER (HEE26) -

B UARTAKENBRITER

14. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 14. B L HERE
2015 2014
20154 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
Cost: R :
At beginning of year F1] 56,548 59,356
Disposals during the year FALE (4,492) (2,808)
At end of year FR 52,056 56,548
Accumulated amortisation: 2ty
At beginning of year F4) 5,075 4,205
Amortisation during the year F R 1,309 1,445
Disposals during the year FAHE (571) (575)
At end of year FR 5,813 5,075
Net carrying amount at end of year FARHREFE 46,243 51,473
Current portion, included in ENERER{n - BIEFE I -
prepayments, deposits and other B4 & H A pE U ZE
receivables (1,307) (1,309)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 1 44,936 50,164

As at 31 December 2015, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB4,423,000 (2014: RMB4,522,000) were
pledged to banks to secure the borrowings granted to
the Group (note 26).
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15. Investments in Associates

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12831B IEEE

15. REEZE R RINIRE

2015 2014

20154 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBT T

Share of net assets TMEEEFE 79,868 78,906

(a)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

(a) BEERFOFBAOT

Nominal value

Place of

Percentage of

BB DI

of paid-up/  registration and Voting  Ownership
Name of company registered capital  operations power interest  Principal activities
B8R/

R afMRANEE SHREEDE hEE  MAREER IEXH

Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun ~ RMB117,650,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Sale of gas products,
Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd. * AR®  China and pipeline
(“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) 117,650,000 FREIAH construction and

N E mEEIRR maintenance
BRLA ([BmEeliR]) HEMRER  ERR

kEEE

Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB50,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40% 40%  Manufacture and sale
Suchuang Natural Gas AR®  China of compressed
Usage Co., Ltd.* 50,000,0007C  HEAH natural gas
(“Kunlun Suchuang Usage”) HERHERBEAAR

FMPOHERFEIRAR
MRBRAR (TR &S
M 1)

“ The statutory financial statements were not audited & ETEMBERRIGAREBSLKE

by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. The
English translations of these company names are
for reference only. The official names of these

companies are in Chinese.

1Bl 25 75 P ok 22k B R A AR L
KERBEIEZ - ZF QA BN
RNBREHRSE  ZFRFANH
BESBBRHX -
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Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

15. Investments in Associates (Continued)
(b) The associates had no contingent liabilities as at

31 December 2015 and 2014.

(c) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions

with the associates during the year are disclosed in

note 21 and note 32 respectively.

(d) The Group’s investments in associates are

considered to be individually material to the

Group. The following table illustrates the

summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates:

15. REBFE QR NRE (8)

(b)

(c)

MR2015% K20145E12 8318 » Bt
BRaIESREE -

AEBRFRNEH L RRINKRER
HEAR R R S0 R EE21 &M eE32

ARER BB = &TE’J&Q%&@%%
AEE@ERMEBEAKN - TREM
REBBZEQ Tﬂﬁﬁﬁi‘%ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%;@

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#eEIRR
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE 92,294 49,849
Current assets MENBEE 35,849 77,498
Current liabilities mEBEE (6,682) (5,802)
Net assets BEFE 121,461 121,545
Ownership interest (%) FiT 8 #EHE 25 (%) 49 49
59,516 59,557
Impact of adjustments HEEE (2,004) (2,119)
Share of net assets DEBEFE 57,512 57,438

Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB4,886,000
in the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB3,770,000). The Group'’s share of the dividend
distribution amounted to RMB2,394,000 (2014:

RMB1,847,000).
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K& £ AR #4,886,0007T (2014
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

15. Investments in Associates (Continued) 15. REEE QT NRE (&B)
(d) (Continued) d) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued) EREAME (8)
2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Revenue WA 112,730 138,179
Profit for the year F T 5,036 5,716
Other comprehensive income FEHEMPEKE
for the year - -
Total comprehensive income FEEENKEER
for the year 5,036 5,716
Ownership interest (%) i B R 25 (%) 49 49
Share of results DI EE 2,468 2,801
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

15. Investments in Associates (Continued)

15. REBFE QR NRE (8)

(d) (Continued) (&)

Kunlun Suchuang Usage Emg A% A
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Non-current assets EMBEE 47,637 30,465
Current assets mEEE 11,020 29,968
Current liabilities mEE & (2,767) (6,763)
Net assets BEFE 55,890 53,670
Ownership interest (%) PTG #EHE 25 (%) 40 40
Share of net assets DIEBEFE 22,356 21,468

Kunlun Suchuang Usage distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB3,302,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).
The Group’s share of the dividend distribution
amounted to RMB1,321,000 (2014: Nil).

RBIZE2015F12A318LEFE - B
7 &% Bl A A EL AR VB BB R

& HEARES,302,
) o REED(ER

0007T (20144 :
FEDIRAE AR

1,321,00075 (201445 : £&) o

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Revenue WA 79,310 94,094

Profit for the year F T 5,523 5,367
Other comprehensive income FEAEM2EE R

for the year - _
Total comprehensive income FEEENKEER

for the year 5,523 5,367

Ownership interest (%) v B R 25 (%) 40 40

Share of results DG FEE 2,209 2,147
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Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12831B IEEE

16. Deferred Tax 16. IEIEBIIE
Deferred tax assets ELEBIEERE
The following are the deferred tax assets recognised RER - DHERRLEFRBEBEERHESH
and the movements therein during the year: wm
Allowance
for Accruals
Deferred doubtful and
income receivables provisions Total
PN IA FEETERR
B A REREHE B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Deferred tax assets BREHIRRE ARBTE ARBTT ARETT AR¥TR
Gross deferred tax assets M2014%F1 /18
at 1 January 2014 R IR REFE 1B
BESE 21,452 125 2,070 23,647
Deferred tax credited/ FERFTA S
(charged) to profit or (k¥ g) B
loss during the year HIRETR IR
(note 10) (MfzE10) 3,145 - (64) 3,081

Gross deferred tax assets MR2014%F

at 31 December 2014 12A318 K
and 1 January 2015 201551 H1H
RIEER IR
BELE 24,597 125 2,006 26,728
Deferred tax credited/ FERAS
(charged) to profit or (0 B) Bm
loss during the year HIRIETR A
(note 10) (BzE10) (260) 602 867 1,209
At 31 December 2015 2015124318 24,337 727 2,873 27,937
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Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

16. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect

of the following:

16ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ(%)

IﬂﬁMTﬂﬁﬁﬂm FREMIEE EE

2015 2014

20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBT T

Tax losses not recognised AERHTIEETE 4,944 1,080

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in newly-established
subsidiaries that have been loss-making and they are
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available in the foreseeable future against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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FERTUm M H BRI R - B B
FERERELERREE -

EEMRIEEE
BEPBCEMENE - NP BERHAK
MEINEREREMBIMEEEMEIR
ML BZBRMI10%TEHT - BEERTER
2008F1 A1 H AR - W i#E A 712007
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16.

17.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2015 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB30.6 million as at 31
December 2015 (2014: RMB17.6 million).

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

16. LR R ()

EEMREEE (8)

M2015%12A831H » T ERAEBER
rR B 3 A SZ A B /B R BB AN HY SR BB 1
BAAMEENFENRERELERE - &
ERA - ZMBRARRA RERARA
B89 k2008F 1 H1H £2015%F12 A31
HEIRMAF o K2015F12H318 -
ER G P R B 1 Y B B AR A B
MERBBEHLBOARKE30.6BETT
(2014%F : AR®17.6E87T) M A
REBLERIERE -

Prepayments, Deposits and Other 17. AAFIE - HERHEMERKIE
Receivables

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Prepayments TR FRIE 8,208 5,263
Deposits and other receivables e Rk H A pE U IR 5,692 11,688
Prepayments for the acquisition Yo B Ak hE 0 FRLAN R IR 60,000 -
73,900 16,951

Classified as: DR
Current e 11,135 14,112
Non-current IETRH 62,765 2,839
73,900 16,951
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W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

17. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 17. AR - HE R EMEBRKIE
Receivables (Continued) (#&)
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are FENFOR - 1Re RHAMEWIA R EE
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed . e EREERTERE -

terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. BME R EERBHASKRIE - 25T A
The financial assets included in the above balances i emE EMT Y EEL R
relate to receivables for which there was no recent SRR EWTE S -

history of default.

18. Inventories 18. &
2015 2014
20155 2014%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Construction materials R 6,400 5,292
Natural gas KAR 892 492
Consumables JHAE G - 30
7,292 5,814
19. Amounts Due from Construction Contract 19. EINERESRBEFRE
Customers
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Arising from construction ERRAREE

of natural gas pipelines EXMNER 60,648 37,445
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20. Trade and Bills Receivables

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12831B IEEE

20. EWE SRR R EE

2015 2014
20155 20144

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 37,651 54,988
Less: Impairment B ORVE (2,909) (499)
34,742 54,489

Bills receivable FENE 7,638 1,986
42,380 56,475

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit except for certain new customers
where payment in advance is required. The average
trade credit period ranges from 5 days to 180 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly and actively monitored by senior
management to minimise credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and

non-interest-bearing.

BRETHEFABMRIEN  AKEE
EREEFRNEBERFRS - FHUX5H
1?E,HHJI%Z5E§:180E| o AEBEHER
1;5&f”& B REER  aRER
Eﬁ;ﬁ J]IF’FJ—&*? BERAE A
i‘%ﬁzﬂﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁzﬁ?%ﬁ o

UEZEARRERERRL RS
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W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

20. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Aged analysis by invoice date

20. EREZRAREE (&)
BERE AN RE DN
RBEZEARRNGREER  RERNE

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the

end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

WE SRR RE T

2015 2014

2015 20145

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Within 90 days 90H K 14,652 30,318
91 days to 180 days 91HZ180H 612 6,734
181 days to 360 days 181HZE360H 3,615 4,761
Over 360 days @360 H 15,863 12,676
34,742 54,489

Trade receivables not individually nor
collectively impaired
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

IR EERENERE S

ARX

I B 5l 2 B B8 LR AR R E R AR

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SEROREITAOT
is as follows:
2015 2014
20155 2014%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Neither past due nor impaired I A 8 B SRl (E 8,981 19,151
Past due but not impaired: BEHERRE :
Less than 90 days PH90H 9,898 22,662
Over 90 days H#3E0H 15,863 12,676
34,742 54,489
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20. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables not individually nor
collectively impaired (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the
end of the year and the movements in the provision for

impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

20. B E 5 R

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

25 (%)

I S E B Sk R R E R BN E 5
AR ()

b 4% 280 HY S R0 M #O JE LUK IR B K 5
W EENCENDHREFLHR -

E 180 HR (B R OBl (B A B U R R 35 T B K
SEBEERIFFERHENBILEP
B - RIBEERKR  EFRRBAMN
ZEHEHFHIERERE  RRREEE
RUEHREARY - AXFHEHRIDK
B AR A E

SRERNEYE 5 IR
AEBRFERNDBERKESERK
FEU B SRR R R E R R BN T

2015 2014
2015 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Movements in allowance account: BRIBRNEE :
At beginning and end of year REFRER 499 498
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B HERFBEEE (H7E7) 2,730 -
Amount written off as uncollectible S A PR Bl B SRR (320) =
2,909 499

The impaired trade receivables relate to individual
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

B B /9 FE U Z 5 AR 3K B8 1 R B B PR 2
SRR R E B &P KR TR BN AT 4 ]
JEWHIERRE - AEEW BHZFER
BEAMERRKEREMEE NRE
i °
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

21. Balances with Related Parties 21. EHEAE R WA
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Amounts due from other related FEWE thEAE
parties IR - 84
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#ralr /A
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Emaralism - 47
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BRI B 2 )7 B AR 7S
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Suling BE AR
Automobile Service”) ([BRMEFZE ) RB R ]) - 42
Suzhou City Suchuang Group Co., Ltd. &/ EAIEEE AR A A
(“Suchuang Group”) ([#REIEE]) - =
- 173
Amount due to an other related A E o BRE 5 B
party
Suchuang Group AlEE _ 946
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

22. BERACEBYREERERK

Deposits
2015 2014
20156 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4: 88 450,768 129,890
Less: Pledged short-term deposits B B ERARE HITE K (5,379) (4,513)
Cash and cash equivalents HE MBS EEY 445,389 125,377
Denominated in RMB NARBE 439,290 127,925
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 10,499 =
Denominated in HK$ LB TTEHE 979 1,965
450,768 129,890

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits

approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balances of
pledged deposits are all pledged as security for trade
payables to suppliers of natural gas.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.

RITR LB ARTERNXRIUEE)
MB o RITHETF MBI FERIDIFRTE
BERIFEBEOMABRZOLHENR
TR LReFEYREERFRT
FREEEEQFERE

M20154F K%2014F12 8318 - 2 K ##
GRESGEHBERNAAREEDE
SRR -

BEARBETEARABRBEMER -
SATI AR AR R B A b M BE B B AR A1)
KAHE  BEERMNEEERE) A%
B B B R AR R 2 IME E RS RV ERTT
HMARBRABAEMER -
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Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

23. Trade Payables 23. ENEZ R
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBT T
Trade payables JETE 5 R 58,782 42,405

An aged analysis of the outstanding trade payables as

at the end of the year, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

o

REZRH RERNAKEEERNES

R BRER D ITIAT -

2015 2014
20155 2014%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
Within 90 days 90H A 52,263 35,352
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 2,431 2,619
181 to 365 days 181HZ365H 1,757 2,948
1 to 2 years 1FE25F 2,318 1,486
Over 2 years 26 E 13 -
58,782 42,405

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEZER/TETE - —REN180

normally settled within 180 days.
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24. Other Payables and Accruals

25

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12831B IEEE

24, HihENAREREFTE A

2015 2014

2015 201445

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Payroll and welfare payables e Hr e M E A 6,592 2,231
Accruals FEFTE 3,482 2,026
Other tax payables H fth e T8 4,287 7,284
Other payables Hith FE A~ FRIE 32,273 61,016
46,634 72,557

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and

repayable on demand.

HttENFRIRAREER R RARE

o

\/
ﬁ\/
i3
]

g
A

Deferred Income 25. IEEUW A
Government Connection
grants fee Total
AT Bh BEAE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBETIT ARETTT
At 1 January 2014 W2014F1 A1H - 85,808 85,808
Additions during the year FARE 9,980 15,544 25,524
Released to profit or loss BB R (83) (12,862) (12,945)
At 31 December 2014 R20145F12 8318 &
and 1 January 2015 20151 A1H 9,897 88,490 98,387
Additions during the year FARNE 3,600 9,890 13,490
Released to profit or loss BAEZE (556) (13,975) (14,531)
At 31 December 2015 R2015612H31H 12,941 84,405 97,346
Analysed into: BRUTREDN
Current ikl 679 14,374 15,053
Non-current FEED 12,262 70,031 82,293
12,941 84,405 97,346
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25. Deferred Income (Continued) 25.
Connection fees represent the fees from customers in
advance in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines
to the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
are received in advance and revenue is recognised over

their expected useful lives of ten years.

Asset related government grants are recognised over
the expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets of

twenty years.

EEWA (5])
BEABRTERMRFSRIEAMRREE
ERTAAREEREMBAOER -
REBEMESMER MR ABEEE
SR {55 P 4F H - SR AERR

HR AN EE IR EMRRE
BEERMAERAFH_-+F®R -

26. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans 26. T E2RITER
2015 2014
20155 2014%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFTT
Bank loans, secured BEEMRITER 60,000 120,000
Bank loans bear interest at rates per LI F DA €6 814 F =
annum in the range of FTEBRITER 6.77% 7.21%
Repayable in the second year TARE _FIER - 30,000
Repayable in the third to BARE=FEFELF
fifth years, inclusive BE (BEEEME) 60,000 90,000
60,000 120,000
Analysed into: BN BIEDA
Non-current JEMED 60,000 120,000
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26. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (Continued) 26.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are all
denominated in RMB.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are secured by
the pledges of the following assets with carrying values

at the end of the year as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended 31

BTSRRI T

December 2015

HZE2015F12A31 B ILFE

SFERITER (8)

AEBENF BRRITEREZMHUARE

A -

AEBEWF BRITERTIARFRKE
B TARE AT BEEET

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
Pledge of assets: BEREE :
Prepaid land lease payments Taft i &I (i) 4,423 4,522
Property, plant and equipment L ER Y (i) 127,177 130,319
Note: BiisE
(i) The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to (i) F2015%F12A31H A AR%60,000,000
RMB60,000,000 (2014: RMB120,000,000) as at 31 7T (20144 : AR %120,000,0007T) &I
December 2015 were jointly secured by Group’s prepaid SESRITER D BASEENTAR il
land lease payments and property, plant and equipment. EFIEARIE « BB KRR o
27. Issued Capital 27. ERITIRE
Shares %
Nominal
Nominal value of Nominal
Number of value of HK$0.01 value
Notes shares  US$1 each each RMB
SREE SREE AR
Bisr ROEE ES 0.0187T HE
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2014 K2014F12 A31
and 31 December 2015 H&2015%12
H31H 5,000,000,000 - 50,000,000 39,378,500

2015 R | FHARRBRMNOER QA

143



144

Notes to Financial Statements

W R P 5
Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B LFE

27. Issued Capital (Continued)
Shares (Continued)

27. EBITRE (&)
i (&)

Nominal
Nominal value of Nominal
Number of value of HK$0.01 value
shares US$1 each each RMB
BiREE BikEE ARE
B8R 17T 0.01#7T H{E
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE :
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1A18 10,000 10,000 - 61,755
Issue of shares BT 7,800,000 = 78,000 61,430
Repurchase A (10,000) (10,000) - (61,755)
Issue of shares BT 4,599,256 - 45,993 36,328
At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31
and 1 January 2015 AX%2015%1A7
1H 12,399,256 - 123,993 97,758
Capitalisation issue BERBEITRG
of shares 587,600,744 - 5,876,007 4,654,385
Issue of new shares BITHR (i) 200,000,000 - 2,000,000 1,584,200
Issue of shares under R B RE A R
the over-allotment option 17/ {n (ii) 26,236,000 - 262,360 207,763
At 31 December 2015 20155
128318 826,236,000 ~ 8,262,360 6,544,106
Notes: B

(i)  In connection with the Company’s Global Offering on

the Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015, 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a
subscription price of HK$2.08 per share for a total
cash consideration, before deducting expenses related
to issue of shares, of HK$416,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB329,513,000).

On 10 April 2015, 26,236,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued by partial exercise of
the over-allotment option at a price of HK$2.08 per
share for a total cash consideration of approximately
HK$54,570,880 (equivalent to approximately
RMB43,214,680).
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(i)

(ii)

MARAEBIMETHNEZREE
MmE ' R2015F3811H ' EERRE
8 & (%2.08/8 JT ¥ 17200,000,0000%
FRoOIBITHNETER BREAK
BCRNBREBEBROHBEBITHNRAS A
416,000,000 7t (IBEE R H AR K
329,513,0007T) °

MR2015F4810H © B 1% f%2.0
I B B I 1T R R A AR i B T
26,236,0008% & A%0.017% JT &Y I @
f% - #3R& (B K 454,570,880/%5 T
(FBERHARYE43,214,6807T) °

I o

[



28. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 27 October 2015 and was amended on 29
January 2016, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 8 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent to, upon their exercise, 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

Notes to Financial Statements
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28. B AESTE

KRR EE—HBERES S ([ZET
g2l BERARSEER ZKIEL
Bz A BB EE R EE KRN -
ZATE A A2 RERBEARAES
(BREBILFNTES) RAEEHEM
B8 - st & Hh2015F108278B £ &£
B WH20165F1 298 EEE] » BRIk
WHUBSEE] - BRI B%B R8T
RRFEB R °

BAIRIBEZTE AR E 2 HARTTEE
BRERAHE  —&17E BEER
ARRMEMAEECD BT Z2ARAKRND
10% ° RAEMI1218 B #E A - RIEZ
BRERASAERZEEN TETRS
BB BAARNRRIEETRD Z21%5
BR o 45 i HER 48 1tk R il 2 A ] L i o B A
R RN ERAS L&

RYARBIES  BR1TTBRAE X8
BRIBEEFEMHEA LT ZBRERAS
FRBIUIFMITESHET AIEE - 1t
S - R F AR RMEAT E BBCR B IF
HWTEFARSEMBREA L ZEME
Bk - WM 12{E A SR ABEA R
AMERIE A B 31T AP 20.1%3 4B
(REH BHERBARA R ERE
) @esagET IAFEHERR
REZRRILE - TAMEE ©
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 28. B AESHEl ()

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, which should

REOBRE 2 2HRT R 2L B H-EE21
ARABARASXNEERBIUETRT
g - IR HEREZITERIHE
EET T SEASMEBERERL A
FEEF10%F -

not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.

BREZTEERESET - ETFE
RUAT Z & @& () AR B B0 1 R R
Bz ARz Wi E ¢ (iDARBK
DREERE AR AER S B EBR
Tz P RmE  RGiDA R BB K
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding H1E °

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of
(i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s

the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the

Company’s shares.

BN A TR AR B SR A
RAGRREZHER -

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

FARE LTS R ARTTE 2B R

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year: T
2015 2014
20155 20144

Weighted Weighted
average  Number average Number
exercise of  exercise of
price options price options
N1 BRE ETH R R
TEE #E 1I(EE A

HK$ HK$
per share 000 per share 000
BRET T SRET T
At 1 January M1A1TH - - = -
Granted during the year REARABERT 2.034 20,000 - -
At 31 December M12A31H 2.034 20,000 - -

146 Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015



28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the scheme which was adopted on 16
February 2015, the Company granted share options
to certain directors and employees (the “Grantees”)
of the Group on 27 October 2015 (the “First Grant”).
However, due to consideration of the Company’s
merger and acquisition plan, the Company agreed with
the Grantees on 2 November 2015 to cancel the plan
for the present and promised to grant new awards as a
replacement of the First Grant in the near future. On 29
January 2016, the Company re-granted share options
to these Grantees (the “Second Grant”) following all
clauses of the cancelled awards with updated exercise
price by reference to the latest five days’ market price.
The management is of the opinion that the newly
granted awards fulfil the criteria to be designated as
replacement awards according to IFRS 2. Thus, the
Company recognised the cost of the original award as if
it had not been modified (i.e. at the original grant date
fair value, spread over the original vesting period, and
subject to the original vesting conditions). In addition,
the incremental cost due to the change of fair value of
the award will be spread over the period from the date
of modification until the vesting date of the modified
award.

Notes to Financial Statements
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28. B AESTE (4])

BIER2015F2 A16 AR 7 BB AT HE T
2| "R BR2015F10827B A A &%
BETESEKES ([ARAl BHE
g (TEREL ] » A - LT RAR
Al BT E - AR AMN2015F11H
2HEEARABEEBUEIRBTE - W&
TR HRBERERARD - B
2016%F1 8298 ' XA RIRIEEBUH
BB GRIERNITEE (B2EH
MABRKMTE) MZREABAEFRRT
ERE ([FZARE]) - BRERA -
RIRE R I S R 5E25: iR T
ZREFEWIEERBENREBENIRE -
EHit - AR AR BRI KA - A
Hi kg E:] (ERREEBHNAF
B TEERREBHE BAETERB
iR o tEoh - HIREN R FEE ) Mg
AR ARG MEE] A R E LIS ET 2 E
V&R A AR R o
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 28. B AESHEl ()
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share R EARERITEBRENITEER
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEHARAT -

period are as follows:

First Grant
BRE
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
B A 1I6EE 1T EAME
‘000 HK$ per share
T BB

27-10-2015 to 26-10-2023

20155F10A270E
20,000 2.034 2023 10H26H
Second Grant
IR
Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
Bk A 1TEME 1T HAE
‘000 HK$ per share
T BB
29-01-2016 to 28-01-2024
20,000 2.00 201651 H29H %2024 17284
The fair value of the share options granted during FRELEREZ AFEAE16,549,000
the year was HK$16,549,000 (HK$0.83 each) (2014: 7 7T (8 180.838 7T) (20145 : &) -
Nil), of which the Group recognised a share option Hi K& B &E £2015F12H31H
expense of HK$1,129,000 (equivalent to approximately 1FF 2 5 R B IR #E I <1,129,0008
RMB909,000) (2014: Nil) during the year ended 31 It (FBZE R4 AR %909,0007T) (2014
December 2015. FoE) e
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the

Notes to Financial Statements
B SRR M T

Year ended 31 December 2015
HE2015F12A31B ILFE

28. B AESTE (4])
FERN - AESEENBREN D TER
B EEE BREH S — SR E
RS - PR R IR I B R
Rt o TREIMEE R AT H 88 A
BH

model used:
First Grant ~ Second Grant
BRI FREE
Share price (HK$ per share) B (&) 2.02 2.00
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 1TIEE (BB T) 2.034 2.00
Dividend yield (%) A2 B (%) 1.33 1.30
Volatility (%) /BZ@JI %) 41.55 39.49
Risk-free interest rate (%) % F1 & (%) 1.64 1.89
Expected life of option (year) ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂxﬁéiﬁ (%) 8 8
Exercise Multiple 1T 15 ER 3.342 3.342
for directors for directors
and 2.86 and 2.86

for employees  for employees

3342 (BF) Kk 3342 (FF) &
2.86 (l8) 2.86 (lB8)

No other feature of the options granted was

incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 20,000,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately
2.4% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

AHE R ER RS A MR LB
BHEE -

‘\Mﬁﬁﬂﬂ&i\%’éﬁt/ﬁaﬁ;ﬁ PN/
Ju+%HET%ﬁﬁzooooomﬂ‘$Hx
ﬁs HEARRABTRZ B BITROH
2.4% o
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29. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing. Details of
the movements in the merger reserve are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies, certain
entities within the Group are required to allocate a
certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined
by their boards of directors, of their profit after tax in
accordance with PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve
fund (the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the

registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event of
liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles
of association, a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a
domestic company is required to appropriate 10% of
its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years) to the statutory surplus reserve. After the
balance of such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s
capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.
However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital

after such usages.
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REEREL

RIEH EEARINGEE R RIEREE
B AEEETHETERANESS
AEZRFPEARERA S ERE T EMHD
BBRF BB (TP R10%) EIETE FE
He (DEERES])  BEE%REEEST
AR AR H50% & LE ©

EERBEZA/TAIDIK  HERBRE
R AR AR AE R P BDE R AT EUE TR I AT
RERERAEFERABRAEAREHT
BRASERID

RIEABE AR RAREZERER - EFEH
AftAERNEARIMWE AR AR H4E
FE10% (KEEBTFEN R EE
%) BETHBRGEE RZREBEOER
EEZEREARMN50%% - AR BIAE
BIEH A AE—TBR - A RBREE
AAERERFTBEIIEE - A - B
B il g1 - ZEERBRREENLE
BRARFTR T DREZRE25% °



29. Reserves (Continued)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by the
Group from receiving related party loans with interest
rates below the market rate.

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the PRC
companies can legally distribute by way of a dividend
are determined by reference to the distributable profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements
which are prepared in accordance with PRC GAAP.
These profits differ from those that are reflected in this
report which is prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to the
SRF as set out above.

Notes to Financial Statements
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29. f#fE (&)

EXF
BT AR BIZIER M5 R
MEMB—FE@ESERMEEHF

S o

B

] R 77 I 1 15

HEBEME - PREAQF A QEARETY
AN EKNEEI2ERBIERRER
JR R B ) R BIDA TE B 7% ik AT R BR &Y
A ROE M M EE o %55 A B R
B % B 75 ¥R 5 22 R P A B ) AN ¥R 5 PR
B A T AER]

RBEFBEREE - FERRMRH LS
NEREXFFDEEEZERESR -
AERIRENIK °
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30. Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessor
The Group leases certain parts of its buildings under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to three years. The terms of
the leases generally also require tenants to pay security

deposits.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

30.

REHERH

EREEA
AEERBEEHELHEELETH
HETEMD  BEBRBR—E=F1%F-
HEBRR—RITPERKEL I RER

AL EREEEHEP T A HH A
SHENFRIPRKERRERE
FIRLRRAT -

2015 2014
2015 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
Within one year —FR 1,945 1,347
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ SE-_FFRF
(BREEREMF) 2,866 995
4,811 2,342
31. Capital Commitments 31. BEREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at RER  NEENEREERT :
the end of the year:
2015 2014
2015 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETT
Approved, but not contracted for: EFEHABRETH -
Plant and machinery B N 2E 98,834 —
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R.BEFIRS
(a) BREKRER

32. Related Party Transactions
(@) Name and relationship

Name of related party

FRET B

Relationship with the Group
LK 5% BB (%

Kunlun Suchuang Gas
Emaralim

Kunlun Suchuang Usage
EmEal N A

Suchuang Group
3=IESE]

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation
Co., Ltd. (“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
AegelehmERARAR ([BhmEH )

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
FRMN R ZE T IR TS

Taicang Suchuang Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Suchuang Property”)
AREHEIFHEREER AR ([FHEIFHE])

Associated company
NG

Associated company
Eﬁi AL N\ ET

EIERCNVAN
Company controlled by

the Controlling Shareholders
PR RIS A A

Company controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders

12 B IR SR AZE | ) X ]

Company controlled

by the Controlling Shareholders

PRI 2 7

Company controlled by
the Controlling Shareholders
PR RSB A A
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 32. BERRS (&)
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) REFER - BBk &b 381 B i
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BRI 5 N EEERIN - ANE B B3
had the following material transactions with FHERR ST :

related parties during the year:

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Associates: i N

Transmission and sale of natural — #iX ¢ #5 &

gas to ARRT
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmarelfiE (i) 1,043 4,938
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#alf /A (i) 1,043 3,817
2,086 8,755
Purchase of natural gas from BT AR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#ralAR (i) 26,900 31,151
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#elF A (i) - 118
26,900 31,269
Rental income Az WA
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#ralAR (iv)/(1) 583 571
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#alF A (iv)/(1) 724 724
1,307 1,295
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2.BEEARS (&)

RER - BRBTERE HE M50 B
BMAR SRR AEEERE
FHEBAZSMT : (&)

32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b)
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

2015 2014
2015 20145
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREFTT
Fellow subsidiaries: BRMEBLF :
Rental income A HA
Suchuang Group G ] (iv)/(2) 347 347
Disposal of fixed assets and HEBETEEEER
prepaid land lease payments N L HEENE
Suchuang Group BEIEE (ii)/(viii) - 34,074
Purchase of goods from =0 WA=
Ein
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service %M %R 55 R (vii) 268 109
Purchase of property from B T2 FlER
YF
Suchuang Property AR E (iii)/(viii) 2,000 -
Service of transportation B T2 ]
provided by B R
Dangerous Goods Transportation &% fpiE &) (viii) - 31
Service of gas pipeline LA 2 et
connection provided by MR EEEAIRTS
Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline &N BRI E 8 (v) - 12,984
Trademark fee E1EE
Suchuang Group e (vi) - -
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually
agreed by both parties.

On July 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with Suchuang Group to sell certain
items of buildings to Suchuang Group for a total
consideration of RMB34,074,000. The consideration
is determined and agreed by the two parties by
reference to the market value based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

The Group entered into an agreement with
Suchuang Property to purchase certain property
located in Taicang for a total consideration of
RMB2,000,000 in 2015. The consideration is
determined and agreed by the two parties by
reference to the market value.

Represents consideration received for the rental of
office premises to the Group’s associates and the
fellow subsidiaries. The Directors confirmed that
the annual rent payable under the relevant rent
agreements had been agreed by both parties.
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(iii)

(iv)

ERR SRR ZE T LB
FE HO BN S R I ETT

R2014F7 8 + ANEBEERAIEE
RN LNBEREBARE
34,074,0007C [ &k Bl S B H & &
TEFEH REREHFLELRE
BIEBLEEAERGEMGE
FISMMEZRETERHE °
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METHE BREAEARE
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ERAS B a2 QR R E R
BRREEABAEDENE WK
E - -EFHIAEBEEEHBET
ERFERSIRETHE -



32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had

the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

(v)

(vii)

(viii)

The construction and installation fees paid to
Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline were determined
with reference to the scale and complexity of work
carried out by Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline, the
fixed price relating to construction and installation
set by the local government, the market rate and the
terms with independent third parties engaged by the
Group in similar transactions. Suzhou Shunchuang
Pipeline ceased to be a related party of the Group
from July 2014 as the equity interest of Suzhou
Shunchuang Pipeline held by the Controlling
Shareholders was disposed of to independent
third parties on 16 July 2014. Accordingly, those
transactions starting from July 2014 were no longer
treated as related party transactions of the Group.

The Group entered into a trademark licensing
agreement with Suchuang Group on 1 August
2014 (the “Trademark Licensing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed to grant
to Taicang Natural Gas and Suzhou Zhongyu the
right to use its trademarks in the PRC for a nominal
consideration of RMB1.00.

The Directors consider that motor vehicle fuels
provided by Suzhou Suling Automobile Service are
on normal commercial terms.

The Directors confirmed that these related party
transactions are one-off transactions and completed
already.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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32. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(c)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with other related
parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note

21 to the financial statements.

NR.BEFIRS (&)

(c)

HRREN AREEEER

7R E5 B L EL i B 58 7 IO S R A BR Y
BB RARME21

Compensation of key management personnel of (d) REBMEEEIEE A B AR
the Group
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Basic salaries and other benefits EXRFH e RAMBAR 4,922 1,606
Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIH R 61 37
Equity-settled share option expenses AT 25 %5 2 1 8 A% HE R 2 358 =
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEEAR
management personnel B SR BN 42 RE 5,341 1,643

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(iv)/(2), (b)(vi) and (b)(vii) above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As Kunlun
Suchuang Gas and Kunlun Suchuang Usage are not
connected persons according to the Listing Rules,
the related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(i) and (b)(iv)/(1) do not constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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33. Loans to Directors

Notes to Financial Statements
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33./4AFEEMNER

Name of related party

RAE T At

Relationship with the Group

BN 55 @ B (%

Suchuang Group
3 IESE]

Loans to directors (including directors and companies
controlled by the directors), disclosed pursuant
to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are

Company controlled by Mr. Su Aping

BB S SE A

YA A

RIEFFE R BEDIZE383(1)(d) &K A A
(RBREZNmEFR) ROIE3E D HE
METES (BEREFREFEHNA
Al) MEFRWAT :

as follows:
Maximum
amount
At  outstanding At
31 December during the 1 January Security
2015 year 2015 held
R2015F  FRREER 20155
Name =L 12A31H RETH 118 HEMER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TxR
Suchuang Group EREIEE - - - NonefE
Maximum
amount
At outstanding At
31 December during the 1 January Security
2014 year 2014 held
R2014%F FRKEE 20145
Name #iE 12A31H BT TA1RE BHEMER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT AR®TR
Suchuang Group EREIEE = 194,126 194,126 NonefE

The loans granted to directors are interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

RMTEFNERRSRE MERETEER

HY o
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34 Financial Instruments by Category 34. REREINEMTE
The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts TRIINFERZERE SNSRI AR
of financial instruments by category as at the end of the BREEDT
year:
2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Financial assets TEEE
Loans and receivables ERREWRIE
Trade and bills receivables JEUNE SR N EE 42,380 56,475
Financial assets included in ST AFERFRIE -
prepayments, deposits and other rE REME
receivables WoRIEN & B & &= 8,547 7,054
Amounts due from other related parties & = 1th B 28 77 28 - 173
Pledged deposits REERUINES N 5,379 4,513
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 445,389 125,377
501,695 193,592
Financial liabilities A E
Financial liabilities measured at REBHERATENERAS
amortised cost
Trade payables N8 5 KIE 58,782 42,405
Financial liabilities included in other &+ A b (< 718 2
payables and accruals B ERANEREE 32,273 63,042
Amount due to an other related party < E4th B & 5 2B - 946
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITER 60,000 120,000
151,055 226,393

160 Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015



35. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and
bills receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of

these instruments as at 31 December 2015.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:
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3. EMTAQNFERLIFEER

NFEER
RNHESERTHR TRFTERHPEE
2 (H&BMN) MEREFXZHE—

NEERE  TwZEREEIEEER
A EM A ERMEE - R20154F
12A318 ' AEE SR TAMKREEHR
HATFERSE -

EE B MN2015F12A8318 B
EkBEEEY  BEEER  BRES
ERRERE - BHESERARER - 5
ATBRRRIE - Ze REMERRIENS
BMEE  FTAHMEMNZREBERESER
MEeRBBENATEEAERAMBEES
FTERRZSETAREHREE -

TRHEENABHNATEAZIARA
BRXZTENXS THARZEEA
B MoFREsERIEE - EFHER
FEKESRATIINERRR :
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35. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The fair values of
the non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
at the end of the reporting period approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts.

The Group did not have any financial assets measured
at fair value at the end of the year.

Liabilities measured at fair value:
The Group did not have any financial liabilities

measured at fair value at the end of the year.
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
The Group did not have any financial assets for which

fair values are disclosed at the end of the year.

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

3. EMTARXNFERLIFEER

(%)

NRERR ()

AHERITERN RO A ERS
RAGER - FEERR LR DIH A MBS
MTAENRE AR RFRBHRKE
ERETAGE ° FT BRITERIEA
HARR (D A R 5 B R B 2 P (B B2 ELAE FE B
EEMEE

RER  AEEYEEAEQFEFE

B FEGENRE
RER  AEBYEEMIRITFEFE
MERAE -

ERELFEMEE
RER AEBYEZEETAESHER
FENEREE -

EFRBERFENEE

Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
RRAEARTEHET SR AETEN
DNFE (F=RK)

2015 2014
20154 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER
(non-current portion) (FEBNEAER 1

60,000 120,000
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and bills receivables, and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations. The Group has other
financial assets and liabilities such as interest-bearing
bank borrowings, deposits and other receivables, and
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for
hedging or for trading purposes. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of the risks which
are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest
rate risk. With all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit after tax and equity are affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:
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6. HEAMEENBERBE

AEENTIZeRMITATEZEBRERER
REEZRELNREMASFEY B
EREFER  BRREZIERREFERNANE
NESER - AEBETABRTHE
E - me KEARYGRIA A K E A FE
FEMEHERAFHEMEREERER
B HARSeMIANTIZANRER
AEENKEREES °

AEESET AN LA ERERSF
KE - INERR  EERRMRSHE
TR - ARBEYEFEXNBETESY
HAEERAENITAEERIA -EFES
REZRKZTEESHAROBER - B
AR

e
AEBEFEHHNTHISNEEEHEREE
HEG BRITERREMIERER - N
SEWEMNBITE SR T A% P EF X
Rk - EFTEEMAZEREZER TR
BRAT  RFREEELANFEMER
S B ERT RS R R EAR R R BN
T

Increase/(decrease) in profit
after tax and equity

BRBL BRI R BREE M, (RD)

2015 2014

20155 201445

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETT

Increase by 25 basis points 225 (LR, (113) (225)
Decrease by 25 basis points W25 (i E B 113 225
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity.

36. EBREENEBERBX (&)

SNES [ B
AREBENRBLRPBEAN - SN
RHHNARBHET - RKEBOAEED
BEEMBBETUARKEINIE - AEEW
SR H NS TE SRR o

TRINTEMERMBAIZRRERF T2
MBI » AR ERTR S A S SRR
FRUXTERSE ALK G
J_g o

Increase/(decrease) in profit
after tax and equity

BRBL BRI R BREE M, (RD)

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARETT

RMB/US$ ARM En
Strengthened 5% FHE5%
Weakened 5% B2{B5%

394 -
(394) -
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, the
composition of which is disclosed in note 35, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in
economic, industrial or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group's total
credit exposure.
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans. In addition, banking facilities have been
put in place for contingency purposes.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

6. EEREENERRIEE (&)

RBEE MR
AEBRAKEERDESTE TAE
REESHRROAR - L TASZEEH
TRTANSBEE (WMERWEZ KRR
KRER) BEIH B LARIK B KL EBH
BHREARE -

AEENEEREBERRITEN &
BeREREEEIE MR TE -
LS - NEBE D ETIRITRE AR RS
ZH e

RER - AEBRIETHARREIRN KA
TRAEEIHABENT

On Within Within ~ More than
demand 1year 2to5 years 5 years Total
BEXR 1R 285FR SHLE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR ARBTR AR®TR AR¥Tx
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31R
Trade payables FERE 5 RH - 58,782 - - 58,782
Financial liabilities ATARMENERR
included in other et B
payables and accruals TREE 32,273 - - - 32,273
Interest-bearing bank loans #t2R1TE K - 4,070 68,660 - 72,730
32,273 62,852 68,660 - 163,785
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Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

36. EBREENEBERBX (&)

RBESERE (&)

On Within Within ~ More than
demand 1 year 2to5 years 5 years Total
REX 18 2ZE5%R SEUE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR®TT AR®ETT AR%®TFR
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A318
Trade payables ERHE SRR = 42,405 = = 42,405
Financial liabilities STARMERNFIRR
included in other [EETE AR
payables and accruals Gyl 62,802 - = = 62,802
Amount due to an other  JEf E 4t B % 77 2008
related party 946 - - - 946
Interest-bearing bank loans #t2R1TE - 8,646 141,118 = 149,764
63,748 51,051 141,118 - 255917

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the year, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement.

UNEMBEFRERABENESEARE
BRERSOTRRSER A BEARE
PHERSBELHFENRSESE - R
BERERKONES  AEERE  RE
RHEEZS AT
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36. EBREENEBERBX (&)

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank loans, less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2015
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36.

37.

38.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
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6. EEREENERRIEE (&)

EEEE (8)

RER  AEENBKRABFESLE
mIREFREBRNEDRKE - LA
HEKZE AEEFMRANEFERE
BFE (BTRR) R ARRERES
KA MR ETISE 'Jﬁﬁﬁ-rﬁ?ﬁﬂitﬁ\ﬁ’]ﬁuj]
BIRBRITHEERSNEEKE
BIREEIRmETE (WES 3() LA
Eﬁﬁ%zﬁ’ilﬂﬁ‘\f¥7k$ﬁ’f§$§iﬁﬁ

financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group HERREIE o INERAFERE R X
has a reasonable level of capital to support its business. (N
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are
as follows:
2015 2014
20154 201445
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREFTT
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 60,000 120,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RE MREEED (445,389) (125,377)
Net debt FER (385,389) (5,377)
Total equity B 930,150 461,270
N/A N/A
Net debt to equity ratio FER AR X TER 38 FA
Events after the Reporting Period 37. REHEEE

On 25 March 2016, the Group, through its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Taicang Natural Gas, entered into
an equity transfer agreement to acquire 51% equity
interests in Sichuan Guangyuan Licheng Gas Co., Ltd.
at a consideration of RMB75 million. Up to the date
of the financial statements, the acquisition is still in
progress.

Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the implementation of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the
current year, the presentation and disclosures of
certain items and balances in the financial statements
have been revised to conform with the current year’s
presentation and disclosures.

38.

R2016F3 250 AEEBBEEE
WEBARAKERAR pT_L_IE\HX%L
Eipa o WKERDIETERRARE
REEAAIS1%HRE  REAARE
75,000,0007C - B EM B HmFT AH %
W BB DR REITH o

o
AN IF MR M 2.2 — SaFal - B
REBRAED (6228 ) RAFERE
it MBHmRETRE REHNET
ERBEBETEE UNFaRFENZT
RIFERHL -
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39. Statement of Financial Position of the 39. N2 T MBS AR R 3R
Company

ARBRBERRNOAGARRKBEE

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

BT

2015 2014
20155 20144
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EM B EERE 8 8
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 107,102 -
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUS I B A B 5 I8 559,653 310,774
666,755 310,774
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables H At & 5 IR 5,472 1,126
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE 661,283 309,648
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 661,291 309,656
Net assets BEREE 661,291 309,656
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRR AR 6,544 98
Reserves (note) fEfE (fTEE) 654,747 309,558
Total equity WS umzm 661,291 309,656
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39. Statement of Financial Position of the

40

Company (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
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39. A AT MBI R K ()
B aE
KRATREEERET -

Retained
profits/
Share  Share option Capital (accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve loss) equity
RE&EH
BRiDEE  BRERE ERRfE  (REE#R) it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR®TT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2014 R2014F171H = = = (109) (109)
Loss for the year FRER = = = (940) (940)
Deemed contribution from BIEG IR A A
the holding company BETA - - 932 = 932
Capital injection iy - - 309,675 - 309,675
At 31 December 2014 and R2014%F12A31H
1 January 2015 K201561A1H - - 310,607 (1,049) 309,558
Profit for the year FREA - - = 21,394 21,394
Issue of shares BT 366,282 = = = 366,282
Share issue expenses BRAD BT (25,219) - - - (25,219)
Transfer of share premium A&7 s (B e 309,675 = (309,675) = =
Dividends declared and paid EERRKER S = = = (18,177) (18,177)
Equity-settled share option EREES
arrangements BREL = 909 = = 909
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F12A318 650,738 909 932 2,168 654,747
The Company’s capital surplus represents the excess RRBBERREEARR ARG A FEEB
of the fair value of the shares of the Company over HAR R RMEEREARREMETH

the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share option scheme granted which are yet to be
exercised. Please refer to note 28 of the financial
statements for details. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or be
forfeited.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2016.

40

B EENEE

BREFRREREER
PriEst BB AT E -

HB = ARITE R
ERCECEA R

RHTFE28 - EHRRMBREETR  ZE

T FRE R R

Bk ARMBKR

BBk IERE - RIBEERE SN o

RV E

I mEREKLEETZN201663 H30H

HOAE R IR R -

2015 4R |

FEIMRBEMNBR AT

171



172

Financial Summary

PR

RESULTS E -
For the year ended 31 December
HZ12A318LEE
2015 2014 2013 2012
20155 20144 20134 20124F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBF T ARBF T ARBFT
Revenue WA 795,625 785,592 663,663 522,980
Cost of sales SHE AR (595,220) (595,566) (463,588) (371,874)
Gross profit EF 200,405 190,026 200,075 151,106
Other income and gains - NS & 33,222 9,959 4,521 2,795
Selling and distribution costs SHE RO A (4,016) (4,788) (2,796) (2,794)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (40,077) (27,183) (20,923) (8,581)
Other expenses Hipfx (3,055) (M (305) (997)
Finance costs BEKA (5,817) (19,023) (42,267) (52,231)
Share of profits and losses of: S {EATAFEE :
A joint venture —RAELE - 3)
Associates NG| 4,677 4,948 3,285 4,879
Profit before tax BRBE AT R 185,339 153,938 141,590 94,174
Income tax expense FrafiF > (46,700) (37,578) (35,098) (23,163)
Profit for the year/period FE/BEET 138,639 116,360 106,492 71,011
Profit for the year/period UTEFEEEE
attributable to: HRBEA
Owners of the parent BAREERA 138,639 116,360 106,703 71,025
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R - - (211) (14)
138,639 116,360 106,492 71,011
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE BEBR
TOTAL EQUITY AR
Total assets BEHSR 1,365,070 967,274 1,130,203 1,440,253
Total liabilities BRESH 434,920 506,004 858,593 1,054,403
Total equity EaER 930,150 461,270 271,610 385,850
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